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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 14th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF
THE MEMBERS OF RIVERIA COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON
THURSDAY, 19t AUGUST 2021 AT 4:00 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY AT THE CHANAKYA, YASHWANT PLACE COMMUNITY CENTRE,
CHANAKYAPURI, NEW DELHI - 110021 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 315t March 2021 together with the Reports of Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua {DIN:02794998),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
rules made thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s),
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
(‘the Act’), Mr. Baljeet Singh (DIN:07156209), who was appointed as an
Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 9t June
2021 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, in
terms of Section 161 of the Act read with the Arlicles of Association of the
Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised
to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion,
consider necessary, expedient or desirable including power to sub-
delegate, in order to give effect to this resolution.”
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4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 2(53), 196, 203 read
with Schedule V, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Gautam Handa as Manager of the
Company for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. 28th December
2021 without any remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of Section 2(53) of the Act, Mr. Gautam
Handa, Manager, subject to the superintendence, control and direction of
the Board of Directors shall have the management of whole or substantially
the whole of the affairs of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and is hereby authorized
to do dall such acts, deeds and things including entering into such
agreement(s), deed(s) or any such documenti(s) as the Board may, in its
absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable including to
sub-delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred on it, in order to give
effect to this resolution or as otherwise considered by the Board to be in the
best interest of the Company.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifico’rion(s)} the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) (the ‘Act’) and the Atrticles
of Association of the Company, subject to such approvals, consents and
permissions, as may be necessary, the consent of members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Board’) to give, from time to time, any loan(s), advances,
deposits to any person, company(ies) or other body corporate(s); and/ or
give guarantee and/ or provide security(ies) in connection with a loan to
any company(ies), body corporate(s) or person; and/ or make investment
in shares, debentures and/ or other securities of any other body
corporate(s), up to an aggregate amount not exceeding ¥ 2,000 crore
(Rupees Two Thousand Crore only) notwithstanding that the individual/
aggregate of the loans or guarantees or securities, so given or to be given
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and/or securities acquired or to be acquired by the Company may
collectively exceed the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do dll
such acts, deeds and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion, consider
necessary, expedient or desirable including power to sub-delegate, in
order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise considered by the
Board of Directors to be in the best interest of the Company.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Aot
L~

Date: 22.07.2021 Shreyasi Srivastava
Place: Gurugram ompcg!y Secretary
BQ
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL INSTEAD OF
HERSELF/HIMSELF IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(‘the Act'). THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE USED SHOULD
REACH THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED
AND SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR
THE MEETING.

2. The requirement to place the matter relating to ratification of appointment
of Auditors by the members at every AGM has been obliterated by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi vide its notification dated 7th May
2018. Accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment
of S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP [301003E/E300005], Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company, who were appointed in the 10th AGM of
the Company held on 26t September 2017.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out the
material facts concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 to 5 of the notice is
annexed hereto and forms part of this Notice.

4. The details of Directors and Manager seeking appointment/ re-appointment,
in terms of the Act (including Secretarial Standard-2) is annexed hereto and
form part of this Notice.

5. Relevant documents, if any and Statutory Registers will be open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days up
to the date of the AGM and will also be available for inspection at the AGM.

6. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to
attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board
Resolution to the Company, authorizing their representative(s) to attend and
vote on their behalf at the AGM.

7. The Company, being a wholly-owned subsidiary of DLF Commercial
Developers Limited, route map of the venue of the Meeting and prominent
landmark as per Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings have not
been provided.

8. Members are requested to quote their DP ID - Client ID and emuail-id,
telephone/ mobile no. in all their correspondences.
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Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 3

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder (‘the Act') and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Balieet Singh (DIN:07156209) was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. 9t June 2021. Accordingly, he shall hold office
up to the date of this Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a notice in writing under the provisions of Section
160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Baljeet Singh
for the office of Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Balieet Singh has given a declaration to the effect that he is not
disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act
and has given his consent to act as a Director in accordance with Section 152
of the Act.

Brief resume of Mr. Balijeet Singh and nature of his expertise in specific
functional areas along with details in terms of the provisions of the Act
(including Secretarial Standard-2) are given hereunder:

| Age: 44 Years

DIN: 07156209

Qualifications: Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accounfants of India.

Experience: Mr. Balieet Singh has over 18 years of work

experience in the field of Finance and Accounts
and has been working with DLF Group since 2010.
Prior to joining DLF Group, he was working with
Moser Baer India Limited.

Terms and Conditions of | Director, liable to retire by rotation

Appointment/
Re-appointment:
Details of remuneration | NIL
sought to be paid, if any:
Details of the | N.A.
remuneration last drawn:
Date of first appointment | 9th June 2021
on the Board:
Shareholding in the | NIL
Company:
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DLF &

Relationship with other | NIL
Directors and other
KMP(s):

Number of Board Meetings | NA
aftended during the
financial year 2020-21:

Other Directorship(s): DLF City Centre Limited;

DLF Info City Developers (Chandigarh)
Limited;

DLF Lands India Private Limited;

DLF Info City Hyderabad Limited;

DLF Info City Developers (Kolkata) Limited;
Richmond Park Property Management
Services Limited;

7. DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited; and

8. Nambi Buildwell Limited.

= =

G O %2 €9

Committee Positions in | Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

other companies:

1. DLF Info City Developers (Chandigarh)
Limited-Member

2. DLF Info City Developers (Kolkata) Limited-
Member

Mr. Baljeet Singh being the appointee is interested in the resolution set-out at
ltem no. 3. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors or Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, in any way, is
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set-out at
ltem no. 3.

The Board commends the abovementioned resolution at ltem No. 3 to be
passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 4

Members may kindly note that Mr. Gautam Handa, was appointed as
Manager of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from
28t December 2018, without any remuneration.

The Board of Directors vide its resolution dated 22nd July 2021, subject to
approval of the members of the Company and such other approvails,
consents and permissions, as may be necessary, had accorded its approval to
re-appoint Mr. Gautam Handa, as Manager of the Company for a further
period of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. 28 December 2021, without any
remuneration.
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Mr. Gautam Handa has not incurred any disqualifications under Section 194(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Further, pursuant to the provisions of
Part | to Schedule V of the Act, he is eligible for re-appointment as a Manager
of the Company. Hence, it is proposed 1o seek the Members' approval by way
of an Ordinary Resolution to re-appoint Mr. Gautam Handa as a Manager of
the Company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(53) of the Act, Mr. Gautam Handa,
subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board, shall have
the management of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the affairs of the
Company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) of the Act Mr. Gautam Handa is
designated as Key Managerial Personnel and shall perform such functions as
may be necessary under the Act or rules made thereunder or assigned to him
by the Board from time to time.

Brief resume of Mr. Gautam Handa and nature of his expertise in specific
functional areas along with details in terms of the provisions of the Act
(including Secretarial Standard-2) are given hereunder:

| Age: 38 years

Qualifications: Mr. Gautam Handa holds bachelor’'s degree in
hospitality management  and - certificate
program in Hotel Revenue Management.
Experience: Mr. Gautam Handa has a rich experience of 17
years in Core Property Operations, Business
Development and Guest Relationship
Management. His last assignment was with W
Goa as Director of Rooms, handling different

performance areqs under hospitality
management.
Terms and Conditions of | Appointment as Manager for a period of 5 years

Appointment/
Re-appointment:
Details of remuneration | Appointment without any remuneration
sought to be paid, if any:
Detdails of the remuneration | He has not drawn any remuneration from the
last drawn: Company.

Date of first appointment | N.A.

on the Board:
Shareholding in the | NIL
Company:
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Relationship with Other | NIL
Directors and other
KMP(s):

Number of Board Meetings | 4 out of 4 (As Manager)
attended during the year
Other Directorship(s): NIL
Committee Positions in | NIL
other companies:

Mr. Gautam Handa, being the appiontee is interested in the resolution set-out
ot Item no. 4. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives in any way, is concerned or
interested either financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 4.

The Board commend the resolution for approval of the members as an
Ordinary Resolution.

ltem No. 5

In terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’),
where giving of any loan or guarantee or providing any security or the
acquisition of securities exceeds:

(a) sixty percent of the aggregate of the paid-up capital, free reserves and
securifies premium account; or
(b) hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium account;

whichever is more, prior approval of the shareholders by means of passing a
Special Resolution shall be necessary.

During the course of business, the Company may be required to give loan(s),
advances or deposits to any person, company(ies) or other body corporate(s)
or make investment in shares, debentures and/ or other securities of any other
body corporate(s). Further, in view of the funding obligations of the holding
and/ or fellow-subsidiary company(ies) and for future requirements of business,
it is proposed fo obtain an enabling approval of the shareholders up to an
amount of T 2,000 Crore, at any given time as outstanding, made in one or
more franches.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution set-out at Item
No. 5 except to the extent of their directorships and shareholding in
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and associates.
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The Board commend the resolution for approval of the members as a Special
Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Oub\
(SW\

Date: 22.07.2021 Shreyasi Srivastava

Place: Gurugram ompany Secreta
g wpﬁié/ \f ry

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dif.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com



Riveria Commercial Developers Limited A
11" Floor, Gateway Tower, DLF

DLF City, Phase-lll, Gurugram- 122 002

Haryana, India

Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911
Name of the Company: Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Registered Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre,
Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:
Client Id:
DP ID:

I/ We, being the member(s) of ....ccceeuinnen.n. Shares of the above named
Company, hereby appoint

T.Name: ...ccovvveviinennnnn.
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature! wssssvsinsessiss sy, or failing him/her

2. NAME: ... cosswssisivsmmanmmaaismis
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: oo or failing him/her

3.NAamMeE: .o,
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: ...oovevvieieiiieeeeaenn

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the
14t Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
19th August 2021 at 4:00 P.M. at the registered office of the Company
The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi
- 110021 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicted below:
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Resl. | Resolution(s) For# Against# | Abstained#
No.
1. Adoption of Audited Financial
Statements, Directors Report and
Auditor’s Report for the financial
year ended on 315" March 2021
2, Re-appointment of Mr. Mangj
Kumar Dua (DIN:02794998),
Director, who reftires by rotation
3. Appointment of Mr. Baljeet Singh
(DIN:07156209) as a Director of the
Company
4, Re-appointment of Mr. Gautam
Handa as a Manager of the
Company
5; Authorise the Board of Directors to
grant loan(s)/ give guarantee(s)
or security(ies) and  make
investment(s) in securities
Signed this ....... Day Ofsasisises 2021
Signature of member
AFFIX
- REVENUE
Sighature of Proxy holder (s) STAMP OF
APPROPRIATE
Notes: VALUE

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

deposited at the Registered office of the Company atleast forty eight
(48) hours before the commencement of the meeting.

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty

4)

and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company carrying vofing rights. A member holding more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

#This is only optional. Please put ‘x’ or ‘v'' in the appropriate column
against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave ‘For/ or ‘Against’

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India

CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com



Riveria Commercial Developers Limited DLFA

11 Floor, Gateway Tower,

DLF City, Phase-Ill, Gurugram- 122 002
Haryana, India

Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900

column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled
to vote in the manner as he/ she deems appropriate.

5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the
meeting in person, if he/ she so desire.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

14 Annual General Meeting - Thursday, 19th August 2021 at 4:00 P.M.

1. Full Name and Registered
Address of the Member
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

2. Full Name of the Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

3. DPId-Client Id

4. No. of Shares held

I/ We, Being the Registered Shareholder/ Proxy for the Registered Shareholder*
of the Company, hereby record my/ our presence at 14th Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 19t August 2021 at 4:00 P.M.
at the registered office of the Company at The Chanakya, Yashwant Place
Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi - 110021 and at any
adjournment(s) thereof.

Member's / Proxy's Signature

*Strike off whichever is not relevant

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the AGM

Name: Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua
DIN: 02794998
| Age: 47 Years

Qualifications:

He is a member of Cost and Management
Accountant, Company Secretary and
Chartered Secretary {London, UK).

Experience:

He has vast experience of more than 22 years in
Corporate Financial Planning and Control,
Accounts, Finance/ Fund Management,
Commercial Operations, Systems
implementations, Strategic Planning, Auditing,
Direct & Indirect Taxation, Costing and
Compliance functions in Manufacturing as well
as Service organization(s). Mr. Dua had been
part of DLF Group for past over 14 years and
holds the position of Assistant Vice President
(Finance and Accounts) Mall division.

Terms and Conditions of
Appointment/
Re-appointment:

Director, liable to retire by rotation

Details of remuneration
sought to be paid, if any:

NIL

Details of the
remuneration last drawn;

He has not drawn any remuneration from the
Company.

Date of first appointment
on the Board:

12th November 2014

Shareholding in  the | NIL

Company:

Relationship with other | NIL

Directors and  other

KMP(s):

Number of Board | 4 out of 4

Meetings attended

during the financial year

2020-21:

Other Directorship(s): 1. Nambi Buildwell Limited;
2. DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited;
3. DLF City Centre Limited;
4. Lodhi Property Company Limited;
5. DLF Info City Developers (Kolkata)

Developers Limited;
6. DLF Emporio Limited; and

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
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7. Richmond Park Property Management
Services Limited

Committee Positions in | NIL
other companies:
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 14t Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company together with the audited financial
results for the financial year ended 315t March 2021.

Financial Performance

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 315t March
2021 is as under:

(X in Lakh)
Financial Results FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Total Income 5,564.01 8.032.31
Total Expenses 11,806.46 12,911.40
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (6,242.45) (4,879.09)
Tax Expenses: - -
Deferred tax charges - 1,044.15
Net Profit/ {Loss) for the year (6,242.45) (5.923.24)

In the financial year 2020-21, the total income of the Company decreased
from ¥ 8,032.31 Lakh (previous year) to ¥ 5,564.01 Lakh (current year). The
total expenses of the Company decreased from ¥ 12,911.40 Lakh (previous
year) to ¥ 11,806.46 Lakh (current year). The Company has suffered net loss of
T 6,242.45 Lakh compared to loss of X 5,923.24 Lakh in previous year. Your
Directors are taking all necessary steps to minimize losses and make it a
profitable company.

About the Chanakya: DLF Luxury Collection

The Chanakya is sitfuated in the heart of Lutyens' Delhi at the iconic location
of Yashwant Place Community Cenire. Spread across 1,88,929 square feet,
the three exquisite and meticulously designed floors of The Chanakya has a
21,369 sq. ft. multi-cuisine restaurant called MKT offering the best dining
experience in the city along with Food hall’'s Luxury edition. There is a 3
screen PVR cinema equipped with the best in screening, audio technology,
all new gourmet healthy menu and a separate counter for crispy fries and
dim sums. The Chanakya houses some of the foremost Indian and
International luxury brands like Hermes, Channel, Good earth, Ralph Lauren,
Montblanc, Rolex, Yoku Moku, Nicobar and Anita Dongre Grassroot among
others. From world-class food and beverage offerings to a state-of-the-art
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cinema, The Chanakya hosts the best of fashion, gourmet and entertainment
all under one roof in the heart of Delhi.

Operations & Future Outlook

The year of 2020 would always be remembered for several reasons and
experiences revolving around one singular pretext of COVID-19. As human
beings, our worst fears have been realised, when together we have struggled
to survive against various odds.

The Chanakya, too has been impacted by the adversities of this pandemic
across its services. Even in such turbulent times, our commitment to truly
provide world class services has been withheld with our team’s dedication at
site. The Chanakya was kept successfully open throughout the last year
without closing the mall any single day, even during harsh lockdown
conditions. The safe & hygienic experience curated by us during this time,
cannot be dismissed easily as whilst a lockdown, we facilitated our retail
partner, a gourmet food superstore, Foodhall to remain open and serve its
customers.

The retail sector witnessed one of the most challenging periods in recent
history. Your Company took a leadership approach by offering a support
package to its retail tenant partners. The segment exhibited gradual
recovery in the second half and the later period of the fiscal saw rebound in
the segment with increased footfalls and better sales.

The Indian economic situation remains fluid on account of the resurgence of
the pandemic and expectations around its consequent impact. The
economy, however, has exhibited resiience and remains on the recovery
path led by the efforts of the Government and policy support from the
Reserve Bank of India. The Government is scaling up the vaccination rollout
programme to support broad-based economic recovery.

The overall expectation remains that consumption will recover steadily
favorably impacting the malls. However, the retailers have to calibrate their
operations and experience to align with the changing demand dynamics
and re-evaluating their value propositions.

Dividend

Due to losses incurred during the financial year, your Board of Directors has
not recommended any dividend on shares.
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Reserves

In view of losses during the financial year under review, your Company has
not transferred any amount to reserve.

Material Changes and Commitment

There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial
position of your Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
Report.

Changes in the nature of Business

There has been no change in the nature of business during the financial year
under review.

Change in Registered Office

During the year under review, the Registered Office of the Company has
been shifted from 1-E, Jnandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New
Delhi-110055 to The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre,
Chanakyapuri, New Delhi— 110021 w.e.f. 15t December 2020.

Share Capital

During the financial year under review, there were no changes in the share
capital of the Company.

Public Deposits

Your Company has neither invited nor accepted/ renewed any public
deposits during the financial year under review.

Holding Company

DLF Commercial Developers Limited, DLF Home Developers Limited and
DLF Limited continued to be the holding companies. Rajdhani Investments &
Agencies Private Limited is the ultimate holding company of your Company.

Subsidiary(ies)/ Associate companies/ Joint Venture

As on 31t March 2021, the Company does not have any subsidiary(ies)/
associate companies/ joint venture. Therefore, the provision of Section 129(3)
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of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the rules made thereunder do
not apply.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, fechnology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m)
of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as
amended, are given at Annexure-A hereto and forms part of this Report.

Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free
workplace for every individual working in the Company through various
training, awareness and practices.

Your Company continues to follow a robust anti-sexual policy framed by
DLF Limited, the holding company (DLF) on ‘Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace' in accordance
with The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH") and Rules made thereunder. Internal
Complaints Committee has been set-up by DLF to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment at various workplaces in accordance
with POSH. The Committee constituted in compliance with POSH ensures a
free and fair enquiry process with clear fimelines for resolution. To build
awareness in this area, DLF has been conducting programmes on regular
basis.

All employees of DLF including of its subsidiaries (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. The Policy is gender
neutral.

During the financial year under review, no case was reported. The Company
continues to promote the cause of women colleagues, creating awareness
on women's safety/ related issues, celebrating important days dedicated to
women and organizing workshops on gender sensitivity.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors confirm
that-
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(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating fo material departures;

(b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the loss of the Company for that period;

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis; and

(e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, your Company has followed the applicable
Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’.

The Board, Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on the date of this report, the Board comprised four Non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with the
provisions of the Act.

During the financial year under review, Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 2nd June 2020.
Further, the shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
27t August 2020 confirmed his appointment as Director, liable to retire by
rotation.

During the financial year under review, Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, had resigned
from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. 13th June 2020.

The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Baljeet Singh as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. 9th June 2021. As an Additional Director,
Mr. Singh will hold office fill the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
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resolution pertaining to appointment of Mr. Baljeet Singh as Director, liable to
retire by rotation, is being placed before the members for their approval in
the ensuing AGM of the Company.

The Company has received the requisite notice from a member in writing,
proposing the candidature of Mr. Baljeet Singh, as Director of the Company.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with the Ariicles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua, Director liable to retire
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offered himself for re-appointment. The resolution seeking members'
approval for his re-appointment forms part of the notice.

A brief resume of the Director(s) seeking appointment/ re-appointment,
along with other details, as stipulated in the Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings, are provided in the Notice for convening AGM.

Mr. Gautam Handa, Manager, Mr. Ankur Maheshwari, CFO and Ms. Shreyasi
Srivastava, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company in terms of the provisions of the Act.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164 of
the Act.

Board Meetings

During 2020-21, four board meetings were held on 2@ June, 300 July,
27t October 2020 and 27th January 2021, the attendance of which is as
under. The maximum interval between any two meetings was 92 days, which
was in compliance with the provisions of the Act. The requisite quorum was
present in all the meetings.

S. | Name of the Directors Position No. of Meeting(s)
No. Held During | Attended
Tenure
1. | Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 1 1
(up to 12! June 2020)
2. | Mr. Amit Sharma Director 4 4
3. | Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua Director 4 4
4. | Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta Director 3 3
(w.e.f. 2nd June 2020)

Auditors and Auditors’ Report

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP [301003E/E300005], Chartered Accountants were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five
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consecutive years from the conclusion of 10t AGM till the conclusion of
15th AGM, subject to ratification of their appointment at every subsequent
AGM. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 7th May 2018
obliterated the requirement of seeking members’ ratification at every AGM
on appointment of statutory auditors during their tenure of five years.

The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors Reports' are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report
does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or
disclaimer.

Emphasis of Matter given in the Auditors’ Report on financial statements are
self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Cost Records & Cost Audit

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, maintenance of cost records and
appointment of Cost Auditor are not applicable to Company for the
financial year under review.

Secretarial Audit

DMK Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice was appointed as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
ended 31st March 2021 is at Annexure-B. The said Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the financial year under review, the Auditors have not reported any
instances of frauds committed by the Company, its officers or employees
under Section 143(12) of the Act.

Annual Return

In accordance with provisions of the Act, a copy of the Annual return for the
financial year ended 315t March 2021 is available on the website of the
Company at www.thechanakya.com.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Securities or Investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees, securities or investments have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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Transactions with Related Parlies

The Company has adequate procedures for the purpose of identification
and monitoring of related party(ies) and related party transactions. None of
the transactions with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of
the Act. Information on transaction(s) with related party(ies) pursuant to
Section 134(3)(h) and 134(1) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended are given in Form No. AOC-2 af
Annexure-C.

The Company's policy for related party transactions regulates the
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy
intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes
are in place for all transactions between the Company and related parties.

For details of related party transactions, members may refer to the notes to
the financial statements.

Annual Evaluation. of the Board & Directors

Your Company has in place criteria for Board evaluation and Directors’ and
such evaluation is done by the Board, pursuant to the Act and the Rules
made thereunder.

The Company believe that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board that
impacts the Company's performance, as a whole. The Board performance is
assessed against the role and responsibilities of the Board as provided in the
Act. The parameters for Board performance evaluation have been derived
from the Board's core role of trusteeship to protect and enhance
shareholders’ value as well as to fulfil expectations of other stakeholders
through strategic supervision of the Company. Directors are evaluated in the
context of the role played by each Director as a member of the Board at its
meetings, in assisting the Board in realising its role of strategic supervision of
the functioning of the Company in pursuit of its purpose and goals. While the
Board evaluated its performance against the laid down criteria, the
evaluation of Directors was carried out against the laid down parameters,
anonymously in order to ensure objectivity.

Risk Management

The Board of Directors has oversight in the areas of financial risks and control
and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the risk
management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Risks are identified through
a consistently applied methodology. The Company has put in place a
mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key
business objectives.

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dlf.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com



Riveria Commercial Developers Limited A
11t Floor, Gateway Tower, DLF

DLF City, Phase-lll, Gurugram- 122 002

Haryana, India

Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have reported that the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Internal Financial Controls and Systems

Internal financial conftrols are an integral part of the risk management
process addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks. The
internal financial controls have been documented and augmented to cover
the business processes including ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
businesses, adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding its assefts,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, check & balances, makers &
checkers, accuracy and completeness of accounting records.

Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial controls is obtained
through management reviews, self-assessment, continuous monitoring by
functional experts as well as testing by the Statutory/ Internal Auditors during
their audits. Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are
reported to the Board of Directors.

The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the nature, size
and complexities of operations.

Significant and Material Orders passed by Regulators or Courts

During the period under review, no significant material orders passed by the
regulators/ courts which would impact the going concern status of the
Company and its future operations.

Accolades

During the financial year under review, "The Chanakya’' bagged the following
prestigious awards:

(a) “Sword of Honour" by British Safety Council.
(b) The Restaurant *MKT" at The Chanakya had been conferred with “The
Best Casual Dining Restaurant™ at the “Times Food & Nightlife Awards

2021".

Acknowledgement

Your Company continues to occupy respectful stature among stakeholders,
most of all our valuable customers. Your Directors would like to express their
sincere appreciation for assistance and co-operation received from the
business partners, stakeholders, suppliers including Central and State
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Government authorities, customers, tenants and other business associates. All
of them have extended their valuable and sustained support and
encouragement during the year under review. It will be the Company’s
endeavor to build and nurture the strong links with its stakeholders.

The Directors regret the loss of lives due to COVID-19 pandemic and are
deeply grateful and have immense respect for every person who risked their
life and safety to fight this pandemic.

The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by every member
of the DLF family who remain dedicated to the Company during this difficult

fime.

Date: 09.06.2021
Place: Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Riveria Co ercial Deve

L
Baljeet Singh Prashant G Gupta
Director Director
DIN: 07156209 DIN: 07951272

By &V
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ANNEXURE-A

Particulars required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i)

The steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy;

NIL

(it

The steps taken by the Company
for utilizing alternate sources of
energy;

NIL

(i

The capital investment on energy
conservation equipment;

NIL

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i)

The efforts made towards technology
absorption;

NIL

(il

The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development orimport substitution;

NIL

(ii)

In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year)-

(a)the details of technology

imported;

(b)the year of import;

(c)whether the technology been
fully absorbed;

(d)if not fully absorbed, areas
where absorption has not
taken place, and the reasons
thereof.

NIL

(iv)

The expenditure incurred on Research
and Development.

NIL
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
(X in Lakh)
S. No. | Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in 20.32 76.49
terms of actual inflows during the
year; and
(ii) The Foreign Exchange outgo 0.68 0.91
during the year in terms of actual
outflows.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rlver:a Co ercial Developers Limiied

Ba{ztg’imgh Prashant G Gupta

Date: 09.06.2021 Director Director

Place: Gurugram DIN: 07156209 DIN: 07951272
B0 pue—
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COMPANY SECRETYTARIES
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911

The Chanakya,

Yashwant Place Community Ceatre,
Chankyapuri, New Delhi- 110021

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Riveria Commercial Developers Limited having
CIN U74110DL2007PLC158911 (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2021 (Audit Period) complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter
along with Annexure - 1 attached to this report: .

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment(FDI), Overseas Direct Investment(ODI) and
External Commercial Borrowings(ECB); (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

- lephone : 91 -011-42432721
31/36, Basement, Old Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi-110060 Te -
Mob. : 987131501;0, 9810480983 E-mall : deepak.kumla@dmkassoclatos.m Website : www.dmkassoclates.In




Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018- (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client-(Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agent);

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Company has a multiplex-cum-entertainment commercial complex namely ‘The Chanakya’
situated at Yashwant Place Commercial Complex, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi-110021. No sector
specific law is applicable on the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards on meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and on General
Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended; (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards as mentioned above.

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that,

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The Changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.




2. Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out unanimously and recorded in the minutes
of the Meetings. Further as informed, no dissent was given by any director in respect of
resolutions passed in the Board meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not incurred any specific event
/ action that can have major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of above referred
laws, rules, regulations; guidelines and standards etc.

FOR DMK ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(DEEPAK KUKREJA)

FCS, LLB., ACIS (UK), IP.
PARTNER

FCS 4140

C P 8265

Peer Review No. 779/2020
UDIN:F004140C000435802

Place: New Delhi
Date:09.06.2021




DMK ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECREYARIES
ANNEXURE 1

To,

The Members,

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911

The Chanakya,

Yashwant Place Community Centre,
Chankyapuri, New Delhi- 110021

Sub: Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices. we followed provide a reasonable basis our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules, and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination was limited to the
verification of the procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

7. Due to the outbreak of Covid-19, we had verified the physical documents to the extent
possible, however the Company has made available the documents / information
electronically which we could not verify physically.

31/36, Basement, Old Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi-110060 Telephone : 91-011-42432721
Mob. : 9871315000, 9810480983 E-mall : deepak.kukreja@dmkassociates.in Website : www.dmkassoclates.in



8. As per the information provided by the Company, there are no pending cases filed by or
against the company which will have material impact/ on the Company except as mentioned
in the Financial Statements of the Company.

FOR DMK ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(DEEPAK KUKREJA)
FCS, LLB., ACIS (UK), IP.
PARTNER

FCS 4140

C P 8265

Peer Review No. 779/2020
UDIN:F004140C000435802

Date: 09.06.2021
Place: New Delhi



Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
11" Floor, Gateway Tower,
DLF City, Phase-Ill, Gurugram- 122 002

Haryana, India

Tel.: (+91-124) 456 8900

AOC-2

DLF &,

Annexure-C

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms' length transaction under third
proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arms’ length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the
year ended 315t March 2021, which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements

or fransactions at Arms’ length

basis:
(X in Lakh)
Name(s) of | Nature of |Duration Salientterms | Dates  of | Transaction Amount
the related | tfransaction | of Approval | Amount paid as
party and Transaction by the advances,
nature of Board if any
Relationship
DLF Power & | Availing/ Financial The related | 29.01.2020 1,060.40 NA
Service Rendering of | year 2020- | party
l%;rlTI\gvevdl services 21 fransactions
subsidiary b
Company entered
during the
financial
year at
arm’s length
basis.
For and half of the Board of Directors
veri mm /c evelopers Limited
Balje t Singh Prash aurav Gupta
Date: 09.06.2021 irector Director

Place: Gurugram

¥
?

DIN: 071 56209

DIN: 07951272

By

Regd. Office: The Chanakya, Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi — 110021, India

CIN: U74110DL2007PLC158911; E-mail: thechanakya@dif.in; Website: www.thechanakya.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes iv Equity
far the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of signilicant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expianations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity lor the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS finarcial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs).
ay specified undet scetion 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are {urther described in
the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the *Cade of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial siatements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 48 ol the financial statements, which explains the uncentainties and the management’s
assessinent 07 the financial impact related to CoVID-19 pandenic situation, for which a definitive assessmemt ol
the impact in subsequent period is dependent on future cconomic developments and circumstances as they evolve.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Informaltion

The Company s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors report. but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do nol express any
form of assurance conelusion thercon,

In connection with our audit of"the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ather information
and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report ir: this regard.

B R s fa Tl s by L AV Tawreat i hi s Y ke
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Respansibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board ol Directors is respunsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequatc accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and othey irregularitics; selection and application of aporopriate accounting policies; making

Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the desigy, implementation and maintenance of

adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial sturetnents (hat give
a lrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's adility 10
continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related v going concern and using the going

concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations.
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are (o abtain reasenable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements us # whole are
free trom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we excrcise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether due to
frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial contrals svstem in place and the
aperating elfectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rensonablencss ol'accounting estimaes and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that miy
cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. 1f we conclude that a material
uncerlainty exists, we are required (o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based

. on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's report. Flowever, future events of conditions
may causc the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, und whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ol'the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencics in internal control that we
identity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order™). issucd by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-seetion (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the “Annexure 1™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and expianations which to the best ol our knowledge
and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books:

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of other comprehensive
income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement ol Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account:

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specitied
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as
amended:

(¢) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above. in our opinion. may have an adverse effect
on the functioning of the Compuny:

{f) On the basis of the written representations received from the direclors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualificd as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

{g) Wilh respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
wilh reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
1o our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this reporl;

(R) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to. the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year ended 31 March 2021, Hence, provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V 1o the Act are not applicable to the Company and has not been commented upon;
and

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 1o the best of our

information and according Lo the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
Fnancial statements - Refer Note 44 to the Ind AS (inancial statements;

i, The Company did not have any long-tenn contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any matetial foresceable losses;

']
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iil.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Far S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accouritants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

-
7

per Amit Yaday g
Partner f
Membership Number: 501753

UDIN: 21501753AAAADH5592

Place of Signature: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: 9 June 2021
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Aunnexure [ referred to in paragraph [ under *“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date

Re: Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (*the Company®)

(1 (1) The Company has maintained proper records showing particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property. plant and equipment and investment property.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancics were identified on such verification.

{c)  According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedires per(ormed
by us, the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment and investment
property arc held in the name of the Company. The immovable properties comprise of multiplex-cum-
entertainment and commercial complex constructed on land taken on leasc for a periad of thirty years as
per Concession agreement entered with New Delhi Municipal Corporation which is duly registered with
the appropriate authority.

(i) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. There was no inventory lying
with third parties.

(i) According to the information and explanations given Lo us. the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, [irms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties cavered in the
register maintained under sectian 189 of the Companies Act. 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii)(a). (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(iv) In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given o us. there are no foans,
investments, guarantees. and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has nat specified the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed stalutory dues
including provident fund. employees® state insurance. income-tax. service tax. duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

(vii) (b) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees” statc insurance, income-tax, scrvice tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added lax, goods and service tax. cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end. for a period of more than six nionths from the date they became payable,

(vii) (¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income lax. sales-tax,
service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viif) ~ The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution
or bank or to povernment or dues to debenture holders during the year,
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{ix)

(X)

(xi)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money by way ol initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence,
reparting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

In our opinion. and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year. Tence, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order are not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion. the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
arder are not applicable ta the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the imanagement, transactions with the related
parties arc in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The provisions ol section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii) insofar as it relates 1o section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
cominented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination ol the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and. not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the manugement, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given Lo us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 arc not applicable 10 the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/1300005

)
per Amit Yadav | f\g(

Partner

Membership Number: 501753
UDIN: 21501753AAAADHS592

Place of Signature: Gurugram. Haryana
Date: 9 June 2021
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF RIVERIA COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Com panies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of” Riveria Cammercial Developers
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company tor the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maimaining internal financial controls based an
the intermal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the cssential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies. the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Comnpanies
Act. 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with relerence to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Finanvial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal Anancial controls aver financial reporting with
reference to these tinancial statements was established and maintained and if such controls aperated effectively
in all material respects.

Qur audit involves pertorming procedures o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included abtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial repurting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ol internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessment
of the risks of muterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial stalements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records (hat. in reasonable
detail, accuralely and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions arce recorded as necessary 1o pennil preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

Ny
g e




SR Batusois Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because ol the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference io these
(inancial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these fnancial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reparting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policics or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects. adeguate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference 1o these financial statements were operaling effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Noiz on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartcred Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

"

\ -'
per Amil Yaday ; “g/ - i

Partner SR, 4
Membership Number: 501753 i
UDIN: 215017S3AAAADHS592

Place of Signature: Gurugram. Haryana
Date: 9 June 2021




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Balspce Sheet a5 nt 31 Alarch 2021
{40 anmwsnts in € lacy, snlest atherwlic stated)

ASSETS
Non-current nssets
Troperty, planit and equipment
lnvesiment property
Rught-of-use sssete
Fiancial assets

Loans
Deferred tax asset {net)
Non-currenl ax agsels {nel)
Other non-current assets
Toral non-current asseis

Corrent assets
{nventones
Finanoiat assews
Loans
Trade recensblies
Cash and cash equnalents
Other baoh bafances
Other fimanciat assets
Other current asses
Telal curreni assels

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equily share caprial

Cther equity

Tomul equiiry

Nuw-current linbilities
Finanen) liabilties
Bomowimgs
Lease labiliws
Other financil Vabilites
Long-tesm provisons
Orther nonecurrent |abilies
Tatal noi-eurvent liabilities

Curvent jiabililies

Froncial labilives
Borrowinuy
Lease habilities
Trude payubles
- Durs of micro enterprises and smalf enterpnses
+ Dues of creditors other than nticro enterpnses and small emerprises
Other linancial habilities

Short-term provisions

Other current habiiues

Totul current Linbilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND KIABILITIES

Swmmary of significant secouniing policies

The acconmanying neles form an nreeral part of these Mnanrial statemenis

As per pur report.a”aven dae

For 5.R. Batlibei & Co. LLI
Chartered Accountants
i jon Number IQI003E/E3D0M05

Membership Number 501753

Plice Guruyram
Date: 9 Sune 2021
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

(AN amounts in T lacy, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue

Revenue from operalions
Others income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of foods. beverages and consumables
Cost of services

Employee benefits expense

DNepreciation and amortization ¢xpense
Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before tax
Tax expense:
- Curent tax
~ Deferved tax
Loss for the yéar after tax

Other comprechensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods

Re-measurement gain on defined benclit plan (gratuity)
Income tax effect on above
Total Comprehensive income for the year

Loss per share (%)
(Basic and diluted) (Nominal value of shares 210 cach)

Summary of significant accounting policies

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Finn Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

7

per ANt Yaday
Partner
Menibership Number: 501753

Place : Gurugram
Date : 9 June 2021

Notes

28
29

30
E)|
32
33
34

36

37

2

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

5,343.07 7.982,36

220.94 4995

5,564.01 8,032.31

379.50 836.80

1.333.59 1.821.57

34282 557.00

31921 3.109.02

5.694.04 5.52445

937.30 1,062.56

11,806.46 12,911.40
(6,242.45) (4.879.09)

- 1,044.15
(6,242.45) (5,923.24)
17.62 195
- (049
(6,224.83) (5.921.78)
(12,486.62) (11.848.20)
For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors of
Riveria Commercial Develgpers Eimited
P

)
Y 1 AN

Baljec Singh Prashant Gaurav Gupta

Directdr Direclos

DIN: 07156209 DIN: 07951272

-

Qe S

Ankur Maheshwari Shreyasi Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary

MNO. : A59C§7
Place : Gurugram

Date : 9 June 2021
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year cnded 31 March 202}

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stared)

A Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. [0 each issucd. subscribed and Gully paid op Number of shares  Amount (T in lacs)
As ut 1 April 2019 50,000 A00
Changes during the year - -
As at 31 March 2020 50,00 5.00
Changes during the year - -

As at 31 March 2021 50.000 5.00
B Other Equity (¥ in lacs)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive Total

Retained carnings | Equity component of income
(Refer note 18) preference shares
(Refer note 18)

Asat 1 Aprll 2019 (8.924.27) 5,568.27 3.70 (3,352.30)
Effect of adoplion of Ind AS 116 Leases 73.73 - - 7373
As at 1 April 2019 (adjusted) (8.850.54) 5,568.27 3.7 (3.278.57)
Loss for the ycar (5,923.24) - - (5,923.24)
Other comprehensive income - - 1.46 |.46
As at | April 2020 (14,773.78) 5.568.27 Al6 (9,200.35)
Loss for the year (6,242.45) - - (6,242.45)
Other comprehensive income - - 17.62 17.62
As at 31 March 2021 (21,016.23) 5,568.27 22.78 (15,425.18)

Summary of significant accoaunting palicies (refer nate 2)

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration Number: 301 003E/E300005

Membership Number: 501753

Place : Gurugram
Date <9 June 202.

For and on behalf of Board of Dicectors of

Riveria CommercinlDevelopers Limit P

'l I..
sl _
A

Baijeet §ingh
Director
DIN; 07156209

. i)
N S

Prashant Gaurav Gupta
Director
DIN: 07951272,

AnKur Maheshwari Shreyasi Srivastava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.NO, : A59017

Place : Gurugram
Pate : 9 June 2021




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021
(4l amovnts in ¥ lacs, nnless atherwise stated)

A. Cash fluws from operating activities

Summary of significant accounting palicies (Refer note 2)

The necompanying notes form an integrnl part of these financinl statcments

As per our repont of even date

For S.R. Buililej & Co. LLP
Chartered Acconntants
ICAI FinngRegisteation Number: 301U B/ 300005

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year coded
31 March 2020

Loss before 1ax as per staterent of profit and luss (6,24245) (4.879.09)
Adjustment far
Depreciation 3,119.2) 3,109.02
Finance cost (includiny IND AS adj of security deposit) 5,65035 5,482.08
Financial liability measured al amortised cost (refer note 23) (91 63Y (144 92)
Impact of rental straight-lining (refer note 28) (32083 (80,03)
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 30095 78.29
Adjustment in investment property 12014
Loss on discomting on security deposit - 3632
Interest income {29.08) (41.45)
Operating Prufit/(Loss) before working capital changes 2,386.52 3,68036
Adjustment for change in werking capital :
(Decrease) n jrade receivables (240.79) {184.84)
Decrease in inventory 21.65 3863
(Increase) in trade payables (135.87) (50.95)
Decvease in financial assets 168 0.94
Decrease in other assets 43.27 51.52
Increase in other financial liabilities 174,89 594.90
Increase in provisions 1551 4.88
i f(d ) in other liabili 7938 (237.36)
Net cash flow/ (used in) from operations 234624 3,598.08
Income 1ax paid (net of refund) 6384 1209 6%)
Net cash flow From / {used in) from operating activitics iA) 2,410,08 3,688.39
. Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of investment property and fixed asseis (102.31) (902.15)
Mavement 1n fixed deposits (nel) (507.32) 10749
Interest received 2908 4143
Net caxh used in investing activities (B) {580.55) (753.21)
*. Cash flows fram financing actlvities
Interest paid 14,537.91) {5.512.21)
Borrowings received 7.074.00 2,35446
Repaymient of bormowings (4,118.00) -
Nel cash flow from financing activities {C) {1,581.91) (3,167.76)
Net increase/(decrcase) in cash and cash equivalents (A4 B+C) 247,62 (232.58)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 17.36 249 94
Cash and cash cquivalents a4 end of the ycar (refer note 13) 264,38 1736

For and oa behalf of Board of Dircctors of

Riveria Commercinl

e

(hepipe
Balject Singh
Director

elopers Lintited

Vaday— Prashan ﬂ]rnv Guopta
Pariner Dircetor
Membership Nuwmber: 501753 DIN: 07156209 DIN-07951272
\
Ankur Maheshwari Shrcya:{Sﬂ\ slava
Cliiel Finimeial Offtcer Company Secretary
M NO, : A590}7
Place : Gurugram Place : Gunzgram

Date : 9 June 2021

Date : 9 June 2021




Risveris Commercial Deselnpers Linvted
Notes to the financial staterents for the year ended 31 March 2021
(U wmnnents [n 8 lavs, wiless utherwise stated)

4 Praperty, plant and equipnient

Buildings Plant and machinery Fumiture and Fivtures Office equipment Toml

Gross Block

s ar | Apnt iy 6,844 9} 4,580 08 578 84 n303 12041 40
Additions 6205 36 66 3478 170 126,17
Transter to myestmery propern 1R46 73 1.229 19 161 D6 1730 258409
Despusals Adjustmen s 3527 SR S0 : - 9377
Asat 31 March 2020 5.024.99 3.294.02 452,26 49.42 8.619.69
Asar L Aprid 02 S04 9 320402 45220 4RA2 BRIV 69
Additiens : 069 069
Nuiposals Adjusimems = = - - -
As ar 31 March 2011 5.024.99 3.291.02 452.26 49,11 8.820.3%
Accumunlated Depreciation

Asat | Apnt 2019 IR0 9% 519138 1337 1961 1.013 33
Charge for the vear 31509 401.78 5755 1040 684 82
I'ransfer to mvestmen property 12137 17753 a7 6.67 33019
Disposals Adjustments . . 2 » -
As at 31 March 2020 474.80 763.63 1116.20 2333 1,367.96
\s at | April 2020 474 80 763 63 106 20 RERT] (L3679
Charge for the year 198 97 UL K] 5678 1747 (G0 S
Disposals Adjusiments ‘ - = - -
Ax at 31 March 2021 673.77 115676 162,98 40,80 2,034, 31
Net Block

As ar 31 March 2020 4,550.19 2.530.39 346.06 1509 TASLT3
As at 31 Mareh 2021 4.351.22 2,137.26 289.27 8.31 6.796.07

(i} Contructual oblipstions
Refer nate 148 (1) fin disclosure of contructual commmmients for the developinent of restarant and caf@ in propetty. plant and equipnient

{ii) Capitalised borrowing cost
Nov borrawing eost was capitalised dunng the enrrent sear (31 Murzh 20200 Rs NIL)

(i) Uselul life of building

Budding consteucted on land covering area of 107,634 sqft 1s taker on lease from NDMC for 30 yeors staring from the possession year 1e. 2013 The construction heyan
i 2013, hused on facourable arburation award dated 16 Febriary 2016 and was coptalised dunng the year 2018 Accordingly, deprecianon is charped over the
remaining gsefinl life of vee Tease. Refer note 2 3¢y

{iv) Transfer to investmient property fram property, plant and cquipnient

\rea admeasunng 7.495 sqft under ane of the restaurant earlier operated by the Company was leased out on 1 Jily 2019 Accordinghy . the gross block an¢ aceumulated
dypreciation amountng to INR 3,254 19 lacs and INR 330 19 Tacs respectively relating o those asscts were iransfered on a propartionale basts (o suvestinesty property in
the previvus year.

rdis e Bos heen wentionally left bk




Riveria Cammercia) Drvelgpers Limited
Nutes to the finnocial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(A1 amuunts in T lacs, daless ntherwise stuted)

S Investment Property

X 5 Furniiure snd 3 Caphal work in
i
Ryildings Plant and machingry Eixtures Office equipment et Tosal
Grass Block
Asat ) Apnil 2019 2192587 535752 1953 - a4l I7.309 33
Additions 20495 1325 o8 . 713 13541
Transter from Praperty, plant and ¢quipmem 1.84673 122909 16] 06 173 - 335419
Disposals _ = = - - -
Adjusiments 843 1789 L . 841 3278
As 8131 Mareh 2020 24,059.07 £.601.97 150.67 17,31 2.13 30.866.15
Asat ) April 2020 24,089 07 5,601 97 13067 1731 75 10866 1S
Addition L 149% = . - [ER-5
Dispisals Adjustments s I & - = -
As a1 31 March 2021 24.059.07 £.615.92 180.67 1731 713 30.88).10
= == -
Accumulated Depreclanivn
Asalt April 2019 131749 660,30 123 - - 1979 12
Charge for the year 93135 51746 1995 162 - 147638
Transfer from propeny. plant and equipment 12127 177.51 nn 867 33019
Disposaly/Adjustments = - = £ e .
As a1 31 March 2020 237011 135529 46.90 14.29 - 3,785.69
= — = - — e —— -
Asar | April 2020 2370 11 135529 4600 1429 - 378569
Chasge for the year a5) 08 sue AR 302 1,505 04
Digpasals/Adjusiments . . = . - =
As at 31 March 2024 3.321.79 1.483.91 §2.72 1731 - $290.73
e e PP — == ==
Net Block
As at 31 March 2020 2168896 S245.68 13467 3.02 7.13 27.080.46
As at 31 Maech 2021 2073729 4.733.01 112.95 - 213 25.590.37
** Capital work-in-progs pri penditure for building and related equip under course of insialalion
(i) Centractual ebligations
Refer note 44B (i) for disclosure of | i for the develop of i property

(§i) Capilahised barrowing cast
No borrowing cost was capiralised during the current year (31 March 2020, Rs. NIL)

{ili) Uselul life of building

Building constructed on land covering arca of 107,639 sqft is taken on lease from NDMC for 30 years starting from the postession year i.e. 2013. The construction began in 2013, based on
Tavourable arbitration award dated 16 February 2016 and was capiralised during the year 2018. Accordingly, depreciation is charued over the remaining useful life of the lease Refernote
(iv) Tranler o invesimeni property from praperty, plant and equipment

Arca admeasuring 7495 sqft under one of the restauram carfier operated by the Company was feased out on 1 July 2019 Accordiogly, the gross block and accumulaed depreciation
amounting to INR 3,2%4,19 lacs and INR 330 19 lacs respeciively relating ta those assels were innsferred on g proponiondte basis Lo investment property:

(v} Informatlon regarding income and expenditure of lnvestment Property (€10 Lacy)

Parliclsrs 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020

Rental incame derived (oom investment property (refer note 38) 3.008.03 3,16537

Less. Direc! gperaling ey perises that d rental income (refer note 3S)° 033 D28

Less Jntetest axpense or, fease liabilitics (refer note 46) 1.849.38 1,794 59

Profit acising from hvesiment property before depreclation sad Indireet eapenses 1,151.82 197050

Ly Depresiation on propedy AOR b3l
Less: Depreciation of rght-ofuse assets 94751 4782

Losyarisiog fromrim property-before indi T Tr29%0%) 5

* Direct operating exp thay d vental income inelad tission and brokarsg

(20 spaice D heer interntionally left blaik]




Riverin Commertial Developers Limited
Notes 10 the financisl sratements (or the year ended 31 Mureh 202t
{All umosnis ln T Incs, umless siherwise stuted)

(v) Fair value hisrarchy and valuntion techrique

The Company’s investmzm Property consist of muluplex snd retail mal), which has been determined based on the nature. characieristics and risks of each propeny As al 34 March 202) and

31 March 2020, the fair vatue ofmc praperw is 2 36,859 lacs and € 38,330 lacs respeclhdy The fair value of invesiment praperty has been determined by external, independent propenty

\alu=r having appropd p profe | mpuaalificating snd recert experience ja the localion and estugpory of the psoperty being vatued A val mode) in i with tha
ded by the intermational valuari itiee has been applied The C iy obuains independ luations (oc its i propesty Ity ind fair valua measurement has

been cateyarised as Loval 3 The fair value has been arrived using discounted cash Qow projocrions based an reliatile estimates of future cash flows considering growih in rental of 3% (31

March 2020 3%5-5%) lo-1g term vacancy rate of 3 00% (31 March 2020 3 00%) and discouni raie of ) 1 50% (31 Narch 2020 | | 50%),

Further, inputs used in the above valuation models are as under

[i} Property details comp rising of 1dia) leasable area. ates actually leased. vacaat ares. parking slots etc

(i} Revenue assumplions camprising of market rent. market parking rent, rent growth rate, parking income prowth tate, markel lease tenure. marker escalations. Cominon srea paintenance
{CAM) income prevailing in the market cte.

Liii) Cost assumptions comprising of brokerage cost, cost escalations elc

{lv) Estimated cash flows from Jeasc rentals, packing income, operadon and maintenaace income etc for ihe fisture years

{v) Sales Projections has been assumed a1 95%% of (otal sates of financial year 2089-20 foryear | i ¢ Apnl 2021 to March 2072

{~i) Waiver scheme is assumed For the FY 2021-23 on the rensal income

Hliation of fair value as a1 31 Mareh 2021 INR lacs
31 March 2020 | Decline in fair value | 31 March 2021
Fair value 3R 440,00 {1,581 00y 3685900
Reconciliation of fair value as a) 31 March 2020 INR lacs
31 March 2019 Decline in fair value 31 Murch 2020
Fair value 44,210 .00 {5.770.00)! 38.410.00

(Tius xpace bers been mntionally ket hinnky " L -~




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes ta the financial staterments for (ke year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amnuents in ¥ laes, uslexs atlicrwise stutred)

31 March 2021

31 Mnrch 2020

6  Luaus
(Unsecured. considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits 61.48 62,14
61.48 62.14
31 Marceh 2021 31 March 2028
7 Deferred tax asset (net)
(#) Deferred tux liability arising on account ol'-
Impat1 of equity p of Ve ble prele shares {1.138.00) (1.248.37)
Impact of property. plant and equipment and ins estment (1,792.39) (1.537.89)
Impact of re- g3in on defined benefirplan (103) (1.63)
Adjustment to retained eamings as of | Apnl 2019 on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (24,80) (24.80)
Financial instruments measured at amonised cos 3.8% 534
Gross deferred 1ax liabilities (2,96237) (2.806.55)
Dreferred tay asset arising on accouni of
Unabsorbed depreciation and broughl forward business losses 6,019.30 4,636 4]
Provision for employee benefits 9.54 (1R 1]
Effect af edoption ol Ind AS 116 leases 453.28 344.98
Others 124.88 79.08
Gross deferred tax ansets 6,607.00 5.071.57
Net deferred tax assets 3,644.63 2,265.02
Neg deferred rdx assets recognised in the Balance Sheet : ]
The Company revisited its business plans and ﬁuur: pm;mmns duc to COVID 19 scenano and decided to recognise deferred 18X assets anly o the extent of
deferred tax lisbilities as there is no 1 bl y supgoricd by convineing e\1dences of their recuverability in the near future, Consequenily, the Company
has not recopnised deferred fax asset in fespect of braught forward business losses i 10 R, 2,374.67 lacs (31 March 2020: Rs. 2,371.39 lacs)
31 March 2021 31 Mawch 2020
{b) Income tux expense
Curreni tax - -
Deferred tax - (1.044,15)
Ineome tax expense as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss - {1,044.15)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
8  Non-current tax assets {net)
Advance income tazes 388.25 452.09
3@_8.24 451i09
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
9 OGther non-current asseéls
Prepaid expenses 2.00 199
Capiral advanecs 215 330
4.15 5.29
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
10 Inventories
(Valved at low er of cost and net reatisabie yelue)

—_———frrtTm e 1881 2744
Consumables, stores nnd sparcs 14.02 16.45
tommuor 3748 68.07

90.31 111,96
FERTERN

i3



Riveria Commercial Developers Limiled

Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AUl amounts in T Ines, unless othevwise stated)

12

Loans
Securty deposits

Trade receivables
Trade recesvables
Receivable from related parties (vefer note 47)*

Breakup for security details:
Sccured. considered geod**
Linsecursd. considered goad
Trade receivables - credit impaired

impairment allow ance (sllowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivebles - credil impaired

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

18,43

19.45

18.43

19.45

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

25894 306.10
19.13 32,13
228.07 338.23
216,69 281.21
3).38 57.02
439.55 138 60
Mn7.62 476.83
(439,55} (138,60)
278.97 338.23

* Na trade ot other receivable are due from direcior or other officers of the Company either severally or joinily with any other perton nor any wade or other
receivable are due from firms or pnivate companies respectively in which any director is pariner, 8 dicector or a member

*® Trade recervables are secured by way of security deposits received fram tenants which is equivalent to 3 to 6 months of monthly rentals,

For terms and conditions relating to Related panty receivablas, refer Note 47.

Cash nnd cash equivalents
Balances with banks

~ [n current accounts
Cash in hand

Net debt recancillation

This section sets out an analysis ol nel debt and the movements in net debt for each of the penods presenied:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

26046 17,01
4.52 0.35
164,98 1736

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cuerent borrowings 103.00 4,118.00
Non-current borrowings 48.841.15 4147132
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 264 98 17.36
Net debt 18:679.16 45.571.96
Changes in liwbilitics arising from fnancial gctivities
Net debt as on 31 March 2021

Particulars Ason 1 April 2020 | Interest an Unbility Cash flows As on 31 March 202§

camponent of
preforence shares

Cutrent borrowinurs 4.118.00 - {4.015.00) 103.00
Mou-current borrowinps 41.471.32 198.43 6.971.00 48.841.15
Less: Cash and caslt equivalents 12.36 - 247.62 264.98
Not debt 45.571,96 299,83 2,708.38 4B.679.16
Net tdebt as on 31 March 2020

Particulars Ason | Aprll 2019 | Interest on Mability Cash flows Astin 3] Mareh 2020

compenent of
¥ I slhiares.
Cumrent hosrowings l.gS.OO i~ 2.333.00 4.118.00
Non-current bormowinus 41.290.40 35940 (178.54) 41.471.32
— € : i 2450 {232:58) 1736
Net debt 42.625.582 359.40 2,887,684 4557196
A y
- - \




Riverla Cammercial Developers Limited
Notes to the finauciul statements for the year erided 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ Jacs; Umlesy otherwise stated)

"

Other bank.halances
Depotits with the remnining mangity of rivore than 3 monia but lcxs-then 12 monthx

Ogher financlal assets
Unbilled receivables

Oither current assets
Prepaid exgenses
Advances fo suppliers of goods end services,
Caonsidered good
Considered daubiful
Batances with government authanlics
Others

Liss: Provision for doubtful advances

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

1.070.37 56305
1,070.37 563.05
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
49939 17856
19839 17856,
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
$1.84 89.57
1.93 5.09
Q.53 9.53
90,22 M3
0.15 030
156.67 198.80
{9.53] (9.53}
147.14 189.27
o ;
7.8 \
;& \
H _‘. I|_




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
{-Alt aniorus in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise siated)

17  Share capital

17 A Equity share capital Number Amount in 3
Authorized equity share capital
Equity shares of 2 10 cach
As at | April 2019 2,000,000 200.00
Changes durmy the year - -
As at 3] March 2020 2,000,000 200.00
Changes during the vear - -
As at 31 March 2021 2,000,000 200.60
Tssued eqguity shure capital
Equity shares of T 10 cach issued. subscribed and fully aid up Number Amount in ¥
Asat [ April 2019 50,000 500
Changes duriny the year - -
As at 31 March 2020 50,000 5.00
Changes during the year - -
As a1 31 March 2021 50,0040 5.00

178

(a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T {0 per share. Each halder of equity shares is entilled to one vote per share. The
Company dechures and pays dividend in Indizn Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 10 the approval of the share holders in
ensuing Annual Gencral Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to reccive remaining assets of the Company. afier distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportian 1o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

(b} Sharehnlding in the Company of the hnlding compuny:

Class of shares Number of shares Tin lacs

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Equity shares of 10 each 50,000 50,000 5.00 5.00
Total 50,000 50,000 5.0 5.00
{c) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of sharcholder

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Number of sharcs

% holding

Nomber of sharcs

% holding

Equity shares of 210 each fully paid up

50,000

DLF Commercial Developers Limited

100.00%

50,000

100.00%

As per records of the Company, including iis register of shurcholders/ members and ofher declarations received fram slmreholders tegarding beneficial

inlerest, the above shareholding represents both fegal and beneficial ownership of shares.

The Comnpany has neither issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buyback of shares in the current year and preceding five years.

Preference share capilal
(n) Autharized preference share capital

Cumulative redeemahle prefereace share of € 100 each Number Amount in ¥

As at 1 April 2019 8,800,000 8,800.00
Changes during the yesr - -
As at 3t March 2020 8,800,000 3.,800.00
Changes during the ycar o =
As at 31 March 2021 8,800,000 8.800.00
(b) Equity com pancnt of 8,596,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares of T 100 cach issued and fully paid

Numbes Amountin ¥

Al 1 April 2019 8 596 000 556837
i /decrease duding the year - -
As at 31 March 2020 8,596,000 5,568.27
Increase/decrease during the year . =
As at 31 March 2021 8,596,000 §.568.27

‘Note 17 covers the equily component of Lhe issued cumulative redeemable preference simres. The [i

PR

{refer note 18).

BLility component is refleeted in Ginancial Tabiliies



Riveria Commercial Developers Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts in & Lacs, unless otherwise staied)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attuching to various classes of shaces

Class of shares

Rights, preferences and restrictions ( including restrictions om distributions of|
dividends and repayment of capilal) attached ta the cluss of preference shares

5,125,000 0 01% cumulalive redcemable preference shares

Preference shares bear a fixed dividend of 0.01% per annum payable an 31 March every
financial year and to be pard within 30 days from the closure of the financial year, The
sald preference shares are at the option of the bourd of di s can be red d at any
time afler the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment (i.c. 27 June 2008) but nat
fater than 26 June 2028 The dividend niphts are cumulative. The Preferenoe shares rank
ahead of the Equity shares in the event of liquidation, The pr ion of 1he liability and
cquity pontions of these shares 15 explained in the summary of aceounting policies.

56.000 00]% cumulative redeemable preference shores

Preference Shares beat s fixed dividend of 0 01%: per annum payable on 31 March every
financial year and 10 be paid witkin 30 days from the closure of the financal vear. The
said prefenence shares are a1 the option of the board of directors can be redeemed ar any
time after the expiry of 6 months from the date of aliotment (i.e, 23 July 2008} but not
later than 22 July 2028 The dividend rights are c lative. The Prefc © shares rank
{ahead of the Equity shares in the ¢vent of liquidation, The presentation of the liability and
cquity portions of these shares is explained in (he summary of accounting policies.

3,415,000 0.41% cumulative redeemable preference shares

Preference Shares bear a fised dividend of 0.01% per annum payable on 31 March every
finangial year and to be paid within 30 days from the clasure of the financial year. The
said preference shares are at the option of the beard of directors can be redeemed at any
time after the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment (i.e. 18 August 2008 but not
later than 17 August 2028. The dividend rights are cumulative. The Preference shures
rank ahcad of the Equity shares in the event of liquidmion. The presemation of the
liability and equity ponions of these shares is explained in the summary of sccounting|
policies.

I8  Other equin

31 March2021 31 March 2020

Retained eamings {21,016.23) (14,773.78)
Equity campunent of 0.01% cumulative redeemable preference shares refer nole 178(h)] 556827 5.568.27
Other comprehensive incame 2278 5.16
(15.425.18) (91200.35!
{a) Retained earnings
As per last batance sheet (14,773.78) (8,924.27)
Efect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases - 1373
Loss for the vear (6.242.45) (5,923 24)
(21,016.23) (14.773.78)
(b) Equity component of 0.01% cuniulative redeemable preference shares
Equity component of 0.01% cumulative redecmable preference shares 5.568.27 5,568,27
(c) Other comprehensive Income
As per last balance sheet 516 3.70
Additions during the year 17.62 1.46
22.78 S16
=

Nature and purpuse of reserves

Retained earnings
Represent deficit in statement of profit and loss.

Equity component of 0.01% cumulative redcemable preference stiares

The Company has issued 0.01% cumulative redeemable preference shares having coupon rate of 0.01% . This being compound [inancial insitument and
accordingly represents equity componeni of preference shares. The said prefecence shares, at the option of the issuer, can be redegmed at eny time afier
the expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment but not later than 20 vears from the date of allatment, (refer note 17B(b))




Riveria Commercial Develapers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ¢nded 34 Narch 2021
(AN amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2021

3} March 2020

19 Borrowings (non-current)
Uinsecured loan from DLF Commercial Developers Limiled, the Holding Company [refer 44,806 46 37.835.46
note 19.1]
Liabllity component of other financial insiroments )
8,596,000 (31 March 2020: 8,596,000) 0.01% cuntwlalive redeemable preference shares 4,034 69 3,635.86
of T100 each fully pard up (refer nate 19 2]
48,841.15 41,471.32
19.1 The loans are repavable an demand at amy time afler 31 March 2022 The losns carmy an interest @ 7.5% per annuin {31 March 2020; 7.3% per
annum)
19.2 For Termé/rights attached to various tlasses of preference shares refer note 17B(b)
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
20 Other financial liabilitics (non-current)
Security deposils received 440.8! 660.83
440.81 660.83
31 March 2021 31 Marceh 2020
21 Long-tevmn provisians
Gratuity {refer note 41} 37.28 37.95
37.28 2795
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
22 Other aon-current liabilities
Deferred mcome * 190,97 256.10
190.97 256.10
*The deferred income relates 1o (he inceme on discounting of Security deposits received frory lessees as per Ind AS 32 Financial Instmments 10 be
amartised in the reining lease perod.
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
23 Borrowlngs (current) *
Unsecured loan fram DLF Home Developers Limited. the Holding Company* 103.00 4.118.00
103.00 4,118.00
* This loan is repayable on demand and carnes an ifiterest @ 7.5% per annum (31 March 2020: 9% per annunt)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
24 Trade payables
Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 45) 18.19 9.02
Due 10 otlier than micro enterprises and smiall enterprises 588,71 73375
606.90 742,77
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Riverta Commereial Developers Limfted
Notes to the finanéinl stutements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All anrountsin ¥ lacs, inless otherwise stated)

3] Macch 2021 31 March 2020
15 Othér linanclal liabilities (current)
Inlerest acerired bor not'due on bomowings T999.03 2,783.19
Creditors for capital paads 319.06 405,73
Sceurity depasils 1,173.23 795.44
4,593.32 3,984.36
Terms and conditlons of the aboave financlal liabilities (for note 24 and 25)
) Trade payables and creditors for capital goods are non inerest bearing.
if) Far tanns and conditions relating to Related panly, refer note 47,
For explanation on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer note 39.
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
26 Short-ferm provisions
Gratuiry {refer note 41) 0.46 0.12
Leave¢ncoshment 0,15 11.84
0.62 12.06
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
27 Other current labifMties P
Slatutory dues 145.89 27.60
Advances frat custofters 9,28 1257
Deferred wieotie b AE 143.58
Other paynble 24,61 21.29
257.93 20804

(Theespace fis heen drentitiiolly tft blaiky
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Riverin Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amaunts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise sinted)

31 March 202} 31 March 2020
28 Revenue (rom operations
{A) Retal ircome * 3.008.03 3,765 37
3,008.03 3.765.37

8.1

28.2

283

¢ Includes Rs 91.63 lacs (31 March 2020, Rs. 144.92 lacs) income on account of financial liability measured at amantised cost and Rs. 320.83 lacs (31
March 2020: Rs. 80.03 lacs) o accounl of straight-lining impact of rental income

During the current year, rental income of Rs Nil (31 March 2020: Rs. 166.10 lucs) has nol been recognised on account of lack of certaimy of collection of
lease payments from (he lessees.

(B) Revenue from contract with customers

Disaggregated revenue information

Sales of food, bevernpes and liguor 125709 272815
Service income 1.031,03 1.332,07
Parking Income 43.03 152.65
233115 4,212.87

Other operating revenue
Amounts forfeited on properties - 4.1
Others 3.89 0.0
3.39 4,12
Toatal Revenue from contract with customers (B) 2.335.04 4.216.99
Total Revenue from aperatfons (A+B) sgam 7,982.36

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a poim in time 130012 2.880.80
Services transferred over period of lime 1,034.92 1,336.19
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,335.04 4,216.99
Contruct bakances

Trade receivable from coniracts with customers 230.67 (83.34
Contract assels 5 g
Contract liabilities (refer note 27) 9.8 1257

Trade receivables are generally on terms of 7 10 30 days. Interest on delay in paymient from customers{if any) is recognised as per terms of conlracts
Contract asse’s are initially recognised for revenue carned from maintenance service and other operating income as receipt of consideration is conditianal an
successful pravision of service. Upon completion of service, the amount recopnised as contract asset are reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract liabilities include long-term and shart-term advances from customers.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Movement of contract liabilitics
Contract liabilities af the beginning ol the year 12.57 -
Amount of révenue recognised from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (12.57) -
Amount received/adjusted against contract liabilities during the year 928 12.57
Contract liabilities ar the end of the year* 9.28 12.57

* included under the head "advances from customers” in note 27,

Reconciling the amount of revenue recugnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:-

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Revenue as per confract price 2.335.04 421699

Adjustment (17 any) -
QZS.M 4!2|6.99




Riverin Cammercial Develapers Limited
Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts tn ¥ lacs, knless atherwise stated)

28.4 ‘There are no remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

29

30

Performance obligation

The performance abligation of the company in case of mainienance service is satisfied over the time, using an input methad 10 measure progress 1owards
complele salisfaction of the service, because of customers simultancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the company. The company raises

invoices as per the lerms of the contracts, upon which the payment is due to be made by the tenant

As per the lenms of service contracl wilh the customers, the Company has right to consideration from customers in an amount that directly correspands with
the value 10 the customers of the company's performance obligation completed 1ill date. Accordimgly, the campany has used the practical expedient under Ind
AS 115 Revenue from centract with customers’ and has disclosed information relating to performance abligation 1o the extent required under Ind AS 115,

Other income
Interest from:

Bank deposits

Income 1ax refund
Liabilnes no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income

Cost of food, beverages and consumahles

31 March 2021

3t March 2020

20.08 4135
14.86 .
169 U7 1.8
793 6.52
220.94 49.95

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Inventory at the beginning of the year 111.62 150 59
Add: Purchases 35786 79783
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (89.58) (111.62)
379.50 836.80
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
31 Cost of services
Electricily, fuel and water 288,02 439.13
Hesting, ventilation and air-conditioning 171.16 25526
Facilily maimenance expenses 743.79 508.03
Parking mair.ienance 130.62 219.15
35359, 182157
31 March 2021 31 Murch 2020
32 Employee benefits expense
Salanes, wages and bonus 279.51 43597
Contribition to provident and other funds 3325 47.36
Gratuity expense (refer noz 41) 16.83 1172
Staff wellare 2323 62.05
34% $57.00
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
33 Depreciation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment (refer note 4) 666,35 684,82
Depreciatian on investment praperly {refer riote. S) 1,505.04 1,476.38
Dupreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 46) X7.82 947.82
3119.21 3!109.02
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
34 Finance cost
Interest expense an
Leans from related parties {refer note 47) 3316.76 3,19746
Financial Bability measurcd ai amorlised cost (refer note 47) 483.71 490.03
TFErest expense On 1Ease [1ADITHIES (TE[er NoiE 40) 1,849,588 T,7943%
Guarantes, finance and bank charges 43,69 4337
569404 552445




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Nutes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2421
(AN mmounts in ¢ lncs, unless otherwise stuied)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
35 Qther expenscs
Lease rent 4.56 496
Repair and maintenance 05.95 96 12
Commission and brokerage 013 D28
Legal and professional 49 30 86 65
Auditors fec 15.56 1475
Advedisement and publicity 266 6194
Business promonion expenses 67.29 186.26
Printing and Siationecy 7.24 15.05
Service & mainlenance 7316 212.58
Bustness support service charges 44.15 52.59
Communication expenses .49 34
Insurance 41.80 1831
Rates and taxes 102.91 36.15
Manpower cost 26.96 108.4)
Hire charges 10.85 216
Loss on discounting on security deposil - 36,32
Provision for doubsful receivables and advances 300.95 7329
Laundry and linen expense 7.50 2275
Miscellaneous expenses 9.64 5.85
937.30 1.062.56
*Payment Io aaditers
As auditor
Statutory audit and limited review fees 12.60 12.00
Tax audit fees 2.00 2.00
Out of pocket expenses 0.96 0.75
15.56 14.75
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
36 Tax erpense
Current tax ' -
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - 1,044.15
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss - L044.15

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the necounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate for the vear indicated are as follows:

Particuiars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Accounting loss before tax (6,242.45) (4,879.09)
At Country's statutory income rax rate of 25,168% (31 March 2020: 25.168'%) (1.571.10) (1,227.97
Adjustments on account of below mentioned differences:
Defened tax recognised in the current vear not recognised in eaclicr years - (28.00)
Unrecognised deferred tax on unabsorbed depreciation, brought forward losses and others 1,570.10 2,265.03
Impact of change in tax rates - 34.22
Others - 0.88
Total Adjustments 1.571.10 227213
Tota) (tax income) / tax expense _ - 1,044.15

37 Earning or (Loss) Per Share (EPS/LPS)
Basic EPS amounfs are calculated by dividing the prolin for the year attributable to equity holders ef the Company by the Weighted Averago number of
Equily shares outsianding duripg the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profir afinbulable ta equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstaiding duting the yen plus the weighted avernge number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluiive potential equity shares
into equity shares.

The following, reflects the income or (foss) and share data used in the Basic.and Diluted EPS Computation;

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Loxx porshare

Net loss as per statement of prafit and loss for the year (6,242.45) {5923.24)
foig-Prefermeedividend-for thevear e UG

—Net loss attributable to.equity. shareholders = {6233 (592410

Weighted average nember af equity shares autstanding ® 50,000 $0,000
Nominal value of squity share (fa %) 10 10
Loss per share (7) (12,486.62) (11,848.20)

(Basic and di.oled)
A Consldcnng the Comp:my has incurred losses in thc current and prevmus year, money received against redeemable preference shares is anti-dijutive.

A



Riveria Commergial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial ststenients for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amannts in ¥ lacy, unless atherwive stuted)

38 Finnncial instruments by category
Falr valueshlerarchy

Financial asscls and financial liabifitics are incasured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three Levels of a faic valus hiersrchy The three
Levels are defined based on the observabiliry of significant ipuis 10 the measaretnent, o3 {ollows;

Level I quoted prices (uuadiusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or fiability, either direcily or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the usset or liability

Fair value of instruments measureil at amurtised cost (Tin lacs)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
31 March 31 March 31 Mareh 31 March
2021 2020 2021 2020

Financial assets

Loans 79.91 81.59 79.9] 81.59

Trade receisuble 273.01 33132 278.07 33823

Cash and cash equivalents 264 98 1736 64 OR 1236

Other bank balances 1.070 37 563.05 1.070.37 363.05

Other financial assets 499.39 178 56 499.39 178 56 |
Total financial assets 2,192.72 1,178.79 2,192.72 1,178,719

Financial liahilities

Borrowings 48.944,15 45,539.32 48,944.15 45589.32

Lease {iabilities (refer note 46) 16.295.21 1588233 16.295.21 15,882 33

Trade payables 606.90 74217 606.90 742.77

Other financial liabilities 5.034.13 4.645.12 503413 4,645 19

Tatal financial liabilities 70,880.39 66,859.61 70,880.39 66,859.61

The above disclosures is p d for linancial assets aed Gnancial linbilities Carrying value of curtent financial assets and current financial liabilities (irnde

receivables, cashh and cash equivalents, other bank balances. other current financial assets, frade payables and other current financial liabilities) represents the best
estimalc of fair value. In respect of non citrent borrowings the carrying value appraximate the fair value.

The fair value of other noit-current financial lisbilities are csbmaied by discounting firture cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar tenms and credit
risk. The valuation requires manageinent to use unobservable inpuls in the model. af which the siprificant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below.
Manzgenent regularly assesses a range of reasonably pussible altematives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the 1otal fair value

3% Financinl risk managemeni

The Company™s principal (inancial linbilities comprise |oans and borrowings, made and cifier payables. The main purposc of these financial linbilitics Is to finance the
Company’s operations and 1o provide yuaraniees 1o support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans. trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents &other bank balance that derive directly from its operatioms.

The Comnpany iz exposed to market risk. credit visk and liguidity risk. The Compam‘s senior managenent oversees the management of these cisks The Company's
senjor inanagement is supported by a financiaf risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk gavernance framework for the Campany
The financial risk cominitice provides assurance Io thie Campany’s senior management that (e Campany’s financial risk activities ave governed by appropriale policies
and procedures znd thal financial risks are idenlificd. measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives

i) Financial instrument by category

For amomised cost mstruments, carmving value represents the best estimate of fair value (Tin lacs)
Parilculars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
FVTPL FYOCi Amortised FVTPL FvocCl Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables - - 278.07 . . 338.23
Cash and equivalents . - 264.92 - . 12.36
Other bank balances - - 1.070.37 - - 563.05
Leans - - 7991 - - 81.59
Other Cirrent (Inancial assets - - 495,39 . - 123,56
Total - - 2,192.72 = . 1.178.79

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 1594445 4558933
Lease liabilities - - 16,295.21 - - 15,882 313
Other financinl Habilities (Noa-Current} < - 440.81 - - 66083
Trade payable - - 606.90 - . 427
—————{Orher fimanciat-iabitiiestCurrenny : = 459332 - - IDBLG
Tofal % - 70.380.39 - 5 66,859.61

i) Risk Management objectives and policics

The Company's aciivitics expase it o market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk, The Comnpany's board of di s hras overa!l responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Tompary’s risk nianagenrent fimnewurk, This note explaing (he sources of risk which the enfity is expoased 1o and how the entity manages the risk and

s the related intpact in the finaucial statements. =
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Macch 2034
(AN amuines in T lacs, wrdess otherwive stated)

A} Credil risk
Credii nsk is the risk thar a counterparty [ails to discharge itg obligation to the Compaiy under s fi msirument. The Company's exposure to credit nsk is
influenced mainly by cash and cash equivelenis. other cank balances, trade receivables. loans and financial sssets measured @l amortised enst The Company
continuously mronitors defaults of customers and other counierparties and incorporates lms informatien into its credit nisk controls. Credir risk reisted ta cash & cash
equivalent and bank deposit 1s nanaged by only accapting Vighly rated banks and diversify bank deposit

9

a) Credit risk management
i Credit risk ropng
The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assunptions, pits and factors specific to the
class of financial assets,
A Low credit risk
B Moderaie credit nsk
C: High credit nsk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset Company Basis of calegurisation Provision for expenses credit loss
A Low creditnsk Cash and cash equivaleats, other bank | 12 month expecied credit loss lite tune expecied credit loss
balances. loans and other financial assets
B: Moderaie credit risk Trade teceivable 12 month expecied credit loss
C: Hiph credii risk Not applicable Not applicable

Based on business environment 0 which the Company operstes, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the:
agreed time period as per contract. Loss mtes reflecting delaults are based on actual credit loss experieuce and considering differences between cuent and historical
economic condilions

Assets arc writien off when there is no ressonable expectation of recovery, such as a deblor declarine bankruptey or a hitigation decided aginst the Company The
Company conlioues ta sngage with parties whaose balances are wriiten ofT and aliempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in staement of profit and
foss.

In respect of trade reccivables .the company recopnises provision for life time expected credit loss

Credit rating Particulars 3} March 2021 31 March 2020
A Low Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank balances, koans 1.914.65 840 56
ant deposits and pther financial #esets
B: Moderate Trade recciveble 278.07 338,23
by Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for expecied credit loss based on 12 month and lifetime expeeted eredit loss for follgwing finaucial assets —
31 March 2021 (¥ in lies)
Particulars Estimated pross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
rarrying amanni at default lasses impairuent provision
Financisl assets
Trade receivables nwe2 (439.55) 778.07
Cash and cquivalents 264.98 - 26498
Dther bank balances 1,070.37 - 1,070.37
Loans 7991 - 79.91
Other current fimancial assets 499.39 - 499.39
31 March 2020 12 in lacs)
Particulars Estimated gross Carryiog amount nct of
carrying amount at default impairment pravision
Finuncial assets
Trade receivables W76.83 (138.60) 33823
Cash and equivalents 17.36 - 1736
Othier bank balances 563.05 - 563,05
Loans 81.59 - B1.59
Other cumrent financial Assets 178.56 - 178.56
In respect of frade receivables, the Conpany considers provision l‘or Tifetlime c\pecxcd credu loss. Given the nature of busi operatians, the Comp ,‘s trade
receivahles hae d condiy risk-as the Comp holds i i g-From-three-to-six- bs—intaseof major- Further
listorical trends indicate any shortfall between such deposits held by thc Company and nmnunu due from customers have been evalualed and provided expected credit
loss.
——————————Reconciliation of fassallowance provision= fonns and other financl st asses - = -
Reconciliation of loss allowanee Trade receivables Loans Other financial aysets
Loss allowance on 31 March 2020 138.60 - -
Allawance for expected credit loss(net) 300.95 o -
Loss allowance ¢i1 31 March 2021 439,55 - s
AT p———
8 Of\“\, Reconciliation of loss allowance provision- loans and other financial asscts P
J P, O‘@concumuon of lss stlowance Trade Receivables - Lonns-- + ), Other financiaf awsets
i \H\Fss allowance an 31 March 2019 oYY > \ 7
% o lowance for expected credit lossinet) 68.76 i .
k 4 ss allowance an 31 March 2020 138.60 ' ol |
FUGES = "/
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Riveria Commercial Deyelopers Limited
Notes to the finuncial statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2020
(AN amnvniy in T locs, unless otherwise stuled)

B) Liquidity risk
Prudent liguidity risk unpli it

under commilted (acilities,

@ sufficient cash and marketable secuntics and (he availability of ﬁmdmg lJlrough an adequate mmount of
committed credit facilities o meet nhln-,nhnnﬁ vehen due Pue (o the nature of the business, the Company maintaing flesibility in f

Takilire

¢ by mair

I 3

Management monilors ralling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents an the basis of expected cash flows The Tompany tnkes into

gecount the liguidity of e market in which the entity operaces.

Maruritles of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s finanicial liabiliucs inlo relevant matunty groupings based on their comractual mawrities for all financial hadilities

(¥inlacs)
31 March 202! Less than 1 1-5 year More than § Total
vear years
Borrowings® 3.102.03 44.806.46 4.034.69 51,9418
Lease liabilitics 1.485.43 6.554.47 46.718 42 34,788.32
Irade payables 606.90 - - 606.90
Security deposils 521.21 1.041.05 437.95 2,006.21
Capital creditors 319.06 - = 319.06
Total 6,040.63 52,401.98 £1,221.06 109,60).6R
* Includes interest accrued on borrowings amounting (o Rs. 2.999.03 Iacs
{Tin lacs)
31 March 2020 Less than | 1-5 year More than § Tats!
\‘m THIS
Borrowings® 6,901.19 37.835.46 3.635.86 48,371.51
Lease liabiliues 1.436.99 6.331.65 48.456.67 5622531
Trade payable 74277 - - 4277
Security deposils 255,81 600.12 41431 1,870.24
Capital craditors 405.73 - - 408.73
Total 1034249 4+4,767.23 52,506,483 107,616.55

*Inclides interest accrued on borrowings amannting to Rs. 2.783,19 tacs

C)  Market Risk

Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities

Interest rate risk is he nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in inarkel interest rates. The company's
fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cosl, They are (herefore not subject to interest raie risk as defined in Ind A3 107, since neither the camying amount nor the
Tuture cash Mows will fluciuate because of a change in markel interest rates.
The Company manages its intetest rate nsk by laving a balanced portfulio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings
Interest rate sk exposure
The Company's variable rate horrowing is subject to uncrest rate. Below is the overall exposure of the borrowing: (2 in laes)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fixed rat borrowings* 4450946 41,953 46
Total borrowings 44,909.46 41,953.46
* does not mclude 2 4.034.69 lacs (31 March 2020 ¥ 3.635 86 lacs) being hability component of compound financial instnonent and Rs 2.999 03 (31 March 2020 2
2.783.19 lacs) being interest accrued on borrowing
Senvitfvity
Profit or loss and cquity is semsitive to higherdower inlerest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in intercst mies. Since all the borrowing are at fixed mte so
there is rio interest rate exposure,

fi) Asscts

The company"s (ixed deposils and security deposits are carrizd at fixed rate. Therefore, the said assets arz ot subject to interes! rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash Mows will fluctuate because of a change in market interes. rates.

40 Capital Managemeat and Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital managemenl is
-Muimain an opdmal capital siructure to reduce ¢ost of capital.

The Campany imonitors capital on the basis of the camying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balanee sheet
The Comnpany manages its capital siucture and make adjusiments (o it in (he light of changes in economic conditions and nisk characleristics of the widerlying assets.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio ot the end of the reponting period was as follows: {in lacs)

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Borrowings (Current & non current including inlerest accrued but not paid) B—— 5194318 | 4837251 |
| Less: Cash & Tash egiiivalents (Note T3) 264.98 17.36

Net debt (A) 51,678,19 48355.15

Toldl equity {15,420 18)] {9.195.35)

Capital and Net Debt (B) 36,258,601 39,159.79

Gearing Ratio (A/B) 143% 123%

uwd as |un|,-lc1m hormwmgs and shon-lcm l:m'omng: including interest on borrowings.
//. 0 LR L




Riveria Commercizl Developers Limited
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounis in 2 facs, unless otherwise stated)

41  Employee benefit obligatians

(A) Providen! fund

The company make contribution to provident and other finds. This is post emplayment benefit and is in the defined benefit plan. The contributions made by
the Company tewards employees provident fund during the yea amounts to ¥ 19 00 lacs (previous year 23936 lacs)

(B

Gratuity plan (non funded)

The company lias a defined benefit gratuity plan, which is unfunded. The Company prowides for gratuity for eniployees i India as per the Payment of Gratuily
Amendinent Ac. 1972, Employees who are in contmirous service for a period of 3 years are elipible for gratuity The amount of gratuity payable on
relirement/termination is the empluyees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days satary multiplied for the numker of years of
service the weighled average duration of (he defined benefit obligation is 23.03 years (31st March, 2020; 2142 years).

Risks associated with plan provisions

The company is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefil plan. Most stgnificant risk pedaining o defined benefil plan and management's estimation of

the impact of these nisks are as follow:
Solary growils nsk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salanes of plan participanis. An inerease in the salary of the plan

participants will increase the plan liability,

Inserest rene nisk

A decrease in inleres! rate in future years will increase the plan liability.
Lofe expectancy nsk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan paniicipants both during and at the end

of ihe amployinent. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan lisbility

Withelrawals risk

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assunied withdrawals and change of withdrawal rales a1 subsequent valuations can impact the plan liability.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recogni:

d in the

of profit and loss:

Hifurcation of projected defined benefit plans obligation at the end of the year in curcent and non current (in lacs)
Paniculars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current | Now-current Current | Nun-current

Graluily 0.406 | 37.28 022 27.95
Movement in the linbility recoanised in the balance sheet is as under: {2 in lacs)
Pacticulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present value of defined benefit abligation as at the beginning of the year 28.17 19.9)
Currenl service cost 13.44 1018
Interest cost 195 1.54
Actuarial loss/(gain) during the year (17.62) (195)
Benefits paid (0.64) sy
Acquisition adjusunent 12.44 -
Present value of defincd benefit oblipalion ax at the end of the year 3174 28.17
Amount recognised in the slatement of profit and loss is as under: (¥in lacs)
Description 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 1344 10,13
Interest cost 1.95 1.54
Amaount recognised in the stat taf profit and loss 1539 (1,72
Breakup of Aetuarial gain/loss: other comprehensive income (¥ in lacs)

Description 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Actuarial (gain)less on ansing from change in demographic assumption - 0.01
Actuarial (gainMloss on arising from ehangc in fi ial ption (0.04) RN
Actuarial (pain)loss on ansing from experience adjustment (17.58) (5.67)
Total (17.62) (1.95)

(This spoce has heen intentionally lefi blank;




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year eaded 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in 2 Ints, unless otherwise stated)

For determination of the gratuity liability of the company, the following principal actuarial assemption were used (T in lucs)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial Assumptions
Discount rate 6.90%) 6.92%
Fulure salary increase For First Year . 7% 7,50 %)
Thereafier : 7.5%
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement age 38/60/62 5800
Mortality rate {100 % of JALM: 2012 - t4) {100 4 of [ALM: 2012 {100 % of IALM:
-14) 2012-14)
Withdrawnl Rate (%)
Uplo 30 years 3.00 3.00
from 31 10 44 vears 2.00 200
Above 44 sears 1.00] 1.00)

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers Discount factors are determined close 1o cach year-

end by reference (o govemment bonds of relevant econome markets and that have terns to maturily approximating to the terms of the related obligation, Other

assumptions a-¢ based on management’s historical expenence.

(% in lacs)

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are shown below:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation 8t the end of the year 31N 2817

) lmpact due 1o increase of 0.50 % (3.23) (2.52)

b) tmpact due 1o decrease of 0,50 % 338 2385

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of (he year 37 28.17

a) Impac! duc 10 increasé of 0.50 % 3.6l am

b Iinpact due to decrease of 0.50 % (3.5 [252)

Sensitivities due ta morlality and withdrawals are not makerial and hence impact of change due lo (hese not calculated.

Sensilivilizs are rate of ir of pensions in payment, rate of i aof p before tand hife exp y sre nat applicable.

The Company expects Lo contribute ¥ 9.08 facs in the néxt annual repsiting penod

Maturity Profilc of Defined Bencfit Obligation

The following pavinents are expected conmbulions to the defined benefit plan for future years {% in lacs)

Year 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Within the next 12 months (next aninual reparting penad) 046 0.2

Retween 2 and 5 years 331 2.26

Beyond § years 157.42 41.68
161.19 44,16

(This space hos been Inteationally left hlaok)




Riveria Commievcial Developers Limited
Notes 10 the finkncial statements for the year caded 31 March 202)
(Al amounts In ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

42 Segment reporting

The Campany is primarily emgayped in the business of {a) reatal and mai end (b) which are established oo the basis of those components of the group that are
evalusied reuularly by the Executive Committee (the ‘Chicf Operatiny Decision Maker™ g5 defined in ind AS 108 - *Cp. Scg ‘1, in deciding how la allocate esources and in dssessing

perfrmance These have been identified tkiny into accoum nature of products and services, the differing risks and renurns amd the internal business repartiny systems The Company is operating
19 Indra which is conaideved as a sinule vecuraphical segment

Pursuant to above the Company has dizclosed followiny entity wide disclosures

(i} information of yeoyraphical areas - lhe Company is operating in ledin which is cansidered as a single geographical seg

(it information about major customers - theie are two customers - Hermes India Rewil Pvt Limited and Future Retall Limited which contritute toral revenue amounting 1o Rs 411 66 lacs and
Rs. 274 28 [acs respectively The said customers’ revenue is more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company

{iii} information abiout the services - the Company is primarily engaued in the business of (a) rental and mai - and (b) busi and which are two reponable segmems as per
Ind AS 108

@ inlacs)

Reafal aod maintenance of
O
Restuarant Buslness iavestment property thers Total
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Mareh 31 March 31 Mareh 31 March 31 March
202t 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 1020
Revenue
Revenue fcom opeations 129310 282308 4,049 97 b i ¢ 3 . - £343 07 7.982 36
Qiher Income 1490 681 206 04 4312 . ‘ 22094 10 9%
Tolal income 1.308.00 2,829.92 4.2§6.01 520239 - - 5564.01 32,0321
Eapenscy
Cosi of foods. beverages and consumables 317950 836 80 - - - - 37950 236,80
Cost of services 10131 15252 123228 1,669 05 - - 1333 59 1.821 57
Employec benelils expense 34281 55700 - - - - 34282 55700
Depreciation and i2ati P 665460 6R4 82 244361 2,424 20 - . ENRLF 1 Jioooz
Finance costs 2167 29 85 - - 567231 5.494 90 5.694 04 5.524.45
Oikeér espenses 38752 670 §9 424.15 34170 125 63 5087 937 30 1,062,506
Total expenses 189242 2,930,588 4.110.04 443495 £,793.00 554557 11.306.46 12,911 40
[Loss) before tAx 1590,42) {100.96) 14597 767,44 (5798.00)] (SS4557) (624249 (4.879.09)
Other informalion
Segment sssels 646170 118072 49,183 3) 5098469 . - 5594701 48,168 41
Segment lisbilitics 51436 189085 | 2175942 13,569.07 4909371 | 43300 71.367 19 67,360 76
Addidons in propeny, pladt and equipment {Gross) vés 12619 - - - - .69 126,19
Additiuns in investment property - - 14.95 33541 . . 14 95 33541
Additions in righi-of-use assets - - - - - 22,643 64 - 20 643 64
Disposal/Adjustmmn! in investment property (refer nate 5) - - - nn - . - 3278
Disposal/Adjusiment in PPE praperty {reler note 4) - 93 77 - -~ = = - i
s spscee s heen ivsetiencithy: lefs blatik;
Vil -
o LY




Riveris Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial stxtements for the yedr egded 31 March 2021
(All amounls in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise staled)

43 Capltalization uf The Clianakyn Project
The Comipeny was inecomarated for the development and operation of a commercml complex with Cinema Hall ar the Yashwant Place Commercial Complex land
covering area of ' 07,639 sqft The awnership of the land lies with NDMC whereas the Company holds the passession for s period of 30 years starting from the
possession year m 2013 The constructian (or the project beyan n 2013, based on favcurable arbitration award dated 16 February 2016 and was camplejed in July
2017 The project constitutes & mall, cmema hall. resmurant and cafe

44 Contingent liabilitles and commitments
A Contingeat ltabilities not provided for:

i} New Drlhy Municipal Council (NDMC) rarsed a default claim on the Company on account of non-payment of hcense fees on 03 January 2012 The Company
obtained an ntenm myunction from the Hun'bie High caun of Delhe against the said demand on the ground that no such amount is payable as NDMC failed to
handover clcan possesston of the land to the Company The malter went nto arbitration and on 16 Febnuary 2016, the arbitration tribunal decided the matter in
Tavour of the Company staung thet the Compam s not hable for any amount to XDAIC all the complenon of the project and cal op

ai the multiples DA(C filed apphcation before Delhy High Court ¢hallenging the arbitration award and the same ts peniding before Dethi High Court lor disposal
The demanid rased by NDMC fin livense fee as on 31 March J02( 15 & 19.524 3 lacs (31 Mareh 2020 2 17,854 83 lacs) The Compam conrpleted the project and
recerved Completon Certificate txsued by NDMC on 07 July 2017 The Company is pavmy License Fee 1o NDSC on reyular basis w e f 07 July 2017 Based on the
leyal opinion abamned amd (avuurable ertntration order, the managemem believes that there will be no economic sulflow and hemce na habslity wilt devolve or the

-

Company in the s31d matier Accordingly. no provision has been made in the Ginancial nts for such ts)
i) _Arrears of fived cumulutive dividend on preference share: (¥ in lace)
Particolars 31 Maeck 202 31 March 2020
Prefercnce dividend on 5125000 001% cumulalr ! bje pref; shares (O fme for 12 years) 2l 618
excloding taxes thereon
Preference dividend on 36.000 0.0[% latrve red ble pref: shares (O dmy for 12 years} 007 a0
excluding taxes thereon
Preference dividand on 3415000 001% cumulative redeemuoble preference shares {Qutstanding for 12 years| b 410
excludmg taxcs therzon
Saneo the Compam 1y m Josses, above cumulative dividend hes net been paid il date
B (i) Commitments (Tinlaes)
Particulars 3t March 2021 31 Murch 2020

1} Estimated amount of ecntracts on Capital accound for Property, plant and equipnient -
1) Estimated anount of contracis on Capital for |

Propetty - 3

(1) The Company was incorporated on February 6,2007 The Company entered muo concession ayreement with New Defhi Munwipal Council (NDMC) for & pered
of Uurty years sie has comstricted and operaling muluplex-cup and tial complex at Yes Plgce © ity Centre, New Dethi lthe
“Project™)

For the abave project. monthly concession fee pavable to NDMC 1s at the rate of 2 100 per syuare feei per monch of the otal permissible area This monihly fee is
payable 1o NDMC in advance from cunstruction compietion dste or the partul completion date, whichever 1 earlier. The fee would be enhanced @ 15% afler every
three years The frst mstalment of the fee was paid w e I July 07, 2017 (i.e from (he date of Completion Cenficate)

45 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Eaterpeises Development Act, 2006 (*“MSMED Act, 2006™) s as under

[T in lses)
Particulars 31 Maeck 2021 31 March 2020
: - 1819 9,02
1) the pritcipal amount amd the 1nterest due thereon remaining unpad 1o atry supplier as st the end of each accounting
year.
1) the amount of mierest paid by the buyer m terms of section 1€, alang with the amoints of the payment made to the Nil Nil
plter beyond the app d day during each accounting year, .
1) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay .n makimg paymeni {wlich bave been paid but beyand| Nil -
the appointed day duzing the year) but withant addng 1he inserea specified under MSMED Act: v
iv}the ol merest d and rem: unpard st the end of each accountiny year; and Nil Nil
v) the amount of lurther mterest romuning due and payable even fa the succeeding years, until such dita when
the miecest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterpnse, for the purpose of disallowwnce as a deductible Nil Nl
expenditure under section 23
T Tic above mlonmalion tegarding Micro, small and Medium Enterp Thas been d } 10 the extent such parties have been wkentified on the basi of

mfmigﬂ'_m"a_'t‘llble with the Company

.‘\
(77 RN
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Riveris Commercial Develapers Limited
Notes to the financlal staten ents for the year endud 31 March 2021
{All amounts in ¥ facs, unless otherwise stated)

46 Leases
Company as a lessce

The Company eriered mio concession aureement with New Dl Munieipal Councit (NDMC) for a4 pened af thirty years snd has constructed amd opemting
luplex-cum- and 1al tex at Yash Place C ity Centre. New Delhi

The Company also has certam leases of warchause space / rertal sccommodaiton for s employees wath lease teems of 12 monihs or less and leases of alfice
equipment with low value The Company applies the “short-ievm lease” and “lease of low-value assets” recognitinn exempiions for these lcases

Sct out helaw ave the carrying amounts of right-of-use asset recogoised and the movement during the period:

Particulars Laod and buildi

Asat T April 2020 31,695 82
Additions »
Depreciatian expense (947 821
As ol 31 March 2021 20,748.00
Particolars Land and buildin

Asat ) April 2019 -
Addinons 22,647 64
Depreciation expense (2478
As at 31 Mareh 2020 21,695,802
Set gut below are the carrying amaunts of lease Habilities and (he movement duriag the perind:
Particalars 37 March 2021

Asac 1 Aprll 1588233
Additinns

Accredion of interest 1,849 88
Payments (1,436 99,
Asat 3] March 16.298.22
Current 15,885.55
Non-current 409.66
Particulars 31 Muorch 2020

Asat I April 3
Additions 15,379 42
Accretion of interest 1.794 59
Payments {1,291 68)
As at 31 March 15.882.33
Current 15,469.45
Non-current 41188

The matunty analy sis of lease habilities are disclosed m Note 39

The effective mtersst rate for lease habilities 15 11.5%. with mawmity in February 2043

The folluwing are the smounts r 4 in profit or loss:

Particulars 31 March 2021
Depreciation expense of nght-of-use asscis 947 82
Interest expense an leasa fiabilities 1,849.88
Expense relating to short-rerm leases {included m other expenses) 456
|Expense r¢lating v short-term leases (included in staff welfure) 249
Total amoun| recogaised In profit or loss 2,804.75
The folluwing are the amounts recoghised in profit or loas:

Particalars 31 Maveh 2020
Depeecimtivn expense of right-of-use assets 94782
finterest expense on lease ligbilities 1.794.59
Expeme relimit1e-short-ternyleases {meluded in-other 15 496
Expense relalmg tc short-tonm leases (ncluded n stafY welfare) 1346
{Total trecagaliod-ln-prafit-or-loss 25764

The Company had tatal cash outllows for leases of T 143699 lacs m 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020: 2 1,291,638 lacs). The Company also had non-essh additiom to
right-of-use assets and lease habiliues of 2 NIL (31 March 2020 ? 22,643,64) lacs and 2 NIL (31 March 2020 2 15,379.42) lacs respectively in the year ended 31
March 2021

Tlie Company has fdkd;lign:qﬂl asset under bon-canceltnble operalmg leases.




Riveria Commercial Develapera Limiited
Nates tg the Anancis) statem ents for the year cadad 31 Mareh 2021
(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unkess nibernisa yoated)

The contractua] figuine cinimon lease pavment in tespert of these Teases as 4131 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are -

{2 i lues)
Paclicolars 31 March 202] 31 March 220 _
Upio one yrar 1.485.43 143698
Twote five year i 6.954.47 8331 8BS
Mare thar fivé years 4_‘_5_.14_3 42 48 456 67
Total $4788.33 8621831
Compaay as a eyt
Dunng July 2017 the Company has mmpleted khe construstion of “The. Charkya™, mulipl and [ complex. st Yashwant Palace.
Changkyapir, New Delhi The tompl d it unce Seplemt

ADYT The lepuny haty emieved intg openating l:am 60 s fnvestment propersy
portfolic These lemses Bne terms batween | and (@ vurs All leases usually melude @ clause Ty ouble upraud revisivn ol t rental charge once i three years

sceerding Lo prevaling market conditions Rental income recopnised by the Cnmpmv during the yrar 15 ¢ 3,008 03 lacs {31 March 2020 3381260 haes).

Fature mmimum renisfs peceivables undér nan-cancelfable periad of operating leases a3 a1 31 March 2021 are, as follaws'

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
'pro one year 2.505 50 253013
Two to five vear 978 .66 1451 05
More than five yeurs 187402 1.882 96
Total 5358.18 5.265.13
~ -
(Fhixspovee Burt heenvemiionally lgft hlank) /1- AR BT




Riveria Commerrial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2021

{All armounts in T laes, uriless othervise stated)

47 Related party disclosnres
In accordance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Pany Disclosures™ of Campanies {Accounts) Rules 2014, thé names of related parties olong with aggregate
amauiit of transactions and year end bolmges with (hem ars as follows:

i) Related Party relationship =

4) Ultimate hofding company
Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited

) Ttolding companies
DLF GCommercial Develapers Limited

DLF Hame Devefopers Limited
DLF Limited
¢) Fellow subsidiary companies at any time during the year (with whom there were transdctions dorivg the year):

DLF- Frojects Limiwed
DLF Ufilities Limited
DLF Emporio Restaurani Limited
DLF Builders and Develapers Private Limnited {formerly: SC Hospilolity Private Limited)
Lodhi Property Company Limited
DLF Brands Privale Limited (Formetly DLF Brands Limited)
DLF Universal Limited
d) Jaint venture of holding compatty a1 any time during the year (with whom there were franssctions during the year):

DLF Power & Services Limited {Joint venture of DLF Limited)
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited (Joint venture of DLF Limjted)

{Thts spaice has been tepsgonialy e blank) ol Dl
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Notes to the financial statemuents for the year cnded 31 March 2021
{AIl amounts in  lacs, usless vtherwise stated)

i) Transaction during the vear

Description Halding company Fellow subsidinries Joint venture of holding eompany
31 March 2021 31 March 1020 31 March 2021 31 March 220 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
?) ) ) 2) ) Q)

Cast of food, bevernges and others
Fnl and bevergges expensey

DLF Euporic Restaurants Limited - . 296 1.17 - -
Lodhi Property Cotnpany Limited . . . 1.01 - .

Cost of services
Foalities marntenaimce expeices

DLF Power & Services Limited . . . - 1.024 26 1.379.66
Qther expense

Bustiess suppurt charges

DLF Power & Senvices Limited - - . . 36.14 139.59

Sales pranisunr expenses
DLF Emporio Restaurants limited - - - 039 = -
Lodhi Property Campany Lumited - - 2.50 2275 - -

Finance cost
Interes) Pard
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited - - - - - 105.02
DLF Comuercial Developers Lilvited 3,236.39 2.854.76 . . 3 )
DLF Home Developers Limited 80.18 237.68 - - - -

Securlty Deposit [ nterest Expenses
DLF Universal Limiled - - ’ 16.29 1449 . -

Tmerest on frabilvy partion of Preference Shares
DLF Commercial Developers Limiled 398.81 3¢04n E .

Revenue from operations
Reustl ey
DLF Universal Limited - . 22091 267.65 s

Remal Swalghiliniug
DLF Universal Limited - - 534 1200 - .

Sectirity: Deposid Ixeferred ncomy
DLF Universal Lirired - - 1o 1 i5.91 - -

Rental incame not recognived due 1o luck of certitinty af
collectinn of lease paymenrs (refer note 28)
DLF Universal Limiled - - - 11.65 - -

Sl of finxd and becerages Rem amd Nervices

DLF Limited 4128 6.89 - - . .
DLF Brands Private Limited 0.69 - - 341 - -
DLF Homes Develepers Limited 1.32 335 - = - -
DLF Universal Limited - - 81.60 107.53 - -
DLF Emporia Restaurants Limiled - - 3.26 - - -
Loan taken
DLF Commercial Developers Limited 6,971.00 - - - - -
DLF Home Developers Limited 103.00] 3.868.00 - - . -
Loan repaid
DLF Cyber City Devrlopers Limited - - - - - 1,335.00
DLF Cominercial Developers Limiled - 178.54 - - 2 -
DLF Honx Developers Linited 4,118.00 - - 3 < =
| Bank Guarsntes taken / released (Net)

DLF Limited 20.74 14.63 - - - a

[ §/ ht:

{ed | i
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Nutes tir the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 202)
(AN amounis in X lucs. un less otherwise scated)

ili)

b}

e}

Balances al the end of the year

Description

Holding company

Fellow subsidiaricy

Jaint yenture of holding company

31 March 2021

31 March 1020

31 March 202)

31 March 2020

3) March 2021

Trade pagables

DLF Power & Services Lumited
DLF Emporio Restaurans Limited
Lodhi Property Campany Limited

Other payables

DLF Limited

DLF Cyber City Developers Limited
DLF Empario Restaurants Limited

Securier Depush
DLF Universal Limiied

Deferred Income
DLF Uhiivérsal Limiled

Trade receivables (including receivables pertaining
to revenue not recegnised due to lack of ceriginty of
callection of lease paymenta)

DLF Lunited

DLF Brands Private Limired

DLEF Home Developers Limited

DLF Universal Limited

DLF Power & Services Limited

DLF Emporic Restaurants Limited

Unbitled Receivable
DLF Universal Limited

Interest accrued bui ol due
DLF Cammercial Developers Limited
DLF Home Develepers Limited

Unsecured loan
DL.F Commerciat Developers Limiled
DLF Home Developers Limited

Equity share capltal
DLF Cammercial Eevelopers Limited

Equits poction of Preference share
DLF Commercisl Develapers Limited

Liability portion Preference share capital
DLF Commercial Developers Limited

Bank gusrantees taken

DLF Limited

(L]

[£4]

)

®)

®)

31 March 2020
{®)

[N
v

2993 84
5.9

44,206.46
103.00

5.00

556827

4.034.69

148543

2062

053

256928
2391

37.835.46
4.118.00

5.00

5.368.27

3.635.86

1,291.67

165,31

13

135

12.74

17.39

0.40
19

(LA R

2740

8.08

101.44

304.60

Terms and conditiens with reinted partles:

The bauk guarantee issued in favour of NDMC by DLF Limited, the holding company on behalf of the Company amounting to 2 1,385.43 lacs. The guarantec will remaim in force
upla 7 August 2021 snd cannot be invoked othenvise than by & witzen demand under this guarantee served on bank on or before the mentioned date

Sale/Purchase terms and conditlons:

The sales 1o and purchases fiom related perties are made on termts equivalent 1o thase that prevail in anm's lengihi ir

interest free and settlement ocours by RTGSANEFT.

o] di

at the year-cnd ave unsectred and

Outstanding balances at the year-cnd are wnsccwred and interest fiee and setlement occurs in cash, For the year ended 31 March 2021, lhc Cnmpany has not recarded any impairment

of receivables relating to amounts owed by related pnmcs (31 March 2020: Nil). This

related pany and the market in which the related party operates.

Laan feom holdlng Compsny

= A

ach fi

g the fi

The Company has tsken loan fram DLF Commercial Developers Limited which is J and repay
March 2020: 7 5% per snnum). The unsecured loan received from DLF Home Developers Limited i ls repayable on demand and ¢rry inlerest @ 7 5% per annum {31 March 2020; 8%
ver aonum) . The loans have been utilised by the Company for mezting the working capiial requiréments and expenditure meurred upon investment property and property plant and

equipmend.

ol

on d

yeﬂ'

/.“ 1 ﬁ‘"‘-:\

P of the

d afler 2022 which carries an interest rete of 7.5% per annum (31




Riveria Commevcinl Developers Limiled
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AR amounds in T lacs, unless atherwise stared)

48 The Company is in the business of leasing and nmintenance of a shopping mall, revenue pertaining Lo which. arises from waderlying lease agreenents. On account of
COVID-19 pandemic. natinnwide lockdown was nnposed by Gov, of India from March 2020 which -esulied into mtermiltent fockdowns! restrictions since last |
year in varied forms in varied pants ul the country.

On of engoing pandemic along with the lockduwn and other restmictive instructions isswed by the Central and Stmic Governnients, the shopping mall of the
Coimany was shut for part of the year, Further. the businesses of various Ienants was also irmpacied. consequent to which the Company offered rental concessions to its
tenams. The Company has assessed the possible effects on (he camying ainounds of investment propetty under developinent, receivables including unbilled receivabl
contract asscts. and other assets / liabilities bascd on various internal and external factors upto the dute of approval of Gnancial statements The (‘ompany has pclfmncd
sensilivity analysis on the plions used (in consultation with fo ‘s expert valuers) and besed on current estimates, expects that the carrying smount of these
assets will be revovered. Further. the has made of iinpact op business end Ginancial risks on afCONVID-19.

Basis above. mamgement has estimated its filure cash flows for the Company which indicates no major chanpe in medium fo leng ierm finsncial performance as
estimated prior 1o COVID-19 tmpact and hence. the Company belienes that there is no itnpact on its ability 1c cont as going and imy its liabilities as and
when they fall due, However. due 10 the unpredictable nature cl the ongoing pandemic. the impact of COVID-19 an the Company™s financial may differ from
that estimaled as at the date of approsval of these financial statements.

49 During the current year. the Compuny has charged the Ci 1 Area Mai) {"CANI) revenue (ircluded under the head ~Revenne from Operations™) from
Ienants on provisional basis. based on B ‘s esti of cost i d. Hawever. post the year-end, the Company will obiain an independent party cenificate of
actunl expenditure incurred fov ards maintenance charpes for the year ended 31 March 2021. The management belicves that no material adjustments will srisc in CAM
revenue which will alfect the curvent period financial staterents.

50 Qwing to impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s aperations and its tenant's businesses. the Company has entered into addendums to lease ayr with its tenants
wherein it has offired revised reduced rates of rentals for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 which have been accepied by all the terants, In accordance with the
provisions of Ind AS 116 “Leases®, the Company has sccounted for above modifications fo operating leasss a3 g new lease from the cifective date of modification.
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Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2021

Corporate Information

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited (“the Company™ or "RCDL"). was incorporated in 2007 for entering into long term
lease agreement with New Delhi Municipal Corporation (NDMC) for the development. operation and maintenance of multiplex-
cum-entertainment and commercial complex at Yashwant Place, Community Centre, Chanakyapuri, New Delhi. (*The
Chanakya™).

The Company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act.
The registered office of the Company is located at The Chanakya. Yashwant Place Community Centre, Chanakvapuri, New Delhi
- 110021

The Company is principally engaged in the business of rental, maintenance and management of investment property. The
Compuny is also engaged in the restaurant and cafe business.

The Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were autharized for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the Board of Directors on 9 June 2021,

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and presentation requirements of Division I
of Schedule 1] to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111). as applicable to the financial statements. The
Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except as mentioned in note 2.3 below.

The Company has incurred losses in the current year and previous year amounting to Rs. 6,242.45 lacs and Rs. 5.923.24 lacs,
respectively. Due to the losses incurred in the past, the net worth of the Company has been completely eroded. The net working
capital is negative and prima facie reflects a het current liability position. However, the holding company has provided full
financial support in previous years and has assured continued financial support for the future operations of the Company. Based
on the support from holding company and positive business projections, the financial statements have been prepared on going
concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial
liabilities which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise
indicated.

Summary of significant accounting Policies

a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
»  Held primarily for trading
e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
o It is expecied to be settled in normal operating cycle
e |tis held primarily for trading .
o Itis due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or )
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e There is no unconditional right to defer the scttlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

b) Foreign currency transaction
Functional and presentational currency
The Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian 2. which is also the functional and presentational currency of the
company.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are canverted to functional currency using the closing
rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

¢) lnvestment properties
Recognition and initial measurement
Investment prcperties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured
initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly atributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price when significant parts of the Investment property are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on the specific useful lives.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriatz, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on
investment properties is provided on straight line basis over the useful lives of the asset as follows: -

Uselul Life Estimated Useful Life &s per Schedule
Asset Category (in years) 11 to the Companies Act ,2013
y (in years)
Building * 25.39 60
Plant and Machinery 15 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10

* Building is taken on lease till February 2043, therefore the same is depreciated towards the remaining useful life.

The residual value. useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively.
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Though the Company measures invesiment property using cost-based measurement. the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the note 5. Fair values are determined based on an annual cvaluation performed by an accredited external
independent valuer applying a valuation model acceptable internationally.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expectzd from their disposal. The difference between the net disposa! proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects which are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/construction cost. borrowing costs and
other direct expenditure.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separalely based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the property. plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefid lives)
Properties, Plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on propetties, plant and equipment is provided on Straight line basis over the useful lives of the asset as follows:

: Useful Life Estimated Useful Life as per
Asset Category : Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,
(Iyedrs) 2013 (in years)
Building 25.39 60
Plant and machinery 15 15
Furniture and Fixtures-restaurant 8 8
Furniture and Fixtures-general 10 10
Office equipment 5 5
Computer 3 3

* Building is taken on lease till February 2043, therefore the same is depreciated towards the remaining useful life.

The residual value, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted
prospectively. if appropriate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset is de-recognized.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventory camprises of below mentioned items:-
s  Stock for maintenance and recreational facilities (including Consumables, stores and spares)
e Stock of liquor, food and beverages

Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other refated incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amounl that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is recognized as follows:

Revenue fromr Contracts with Customers
Pursuant to the application of Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ effective from April |, 2018, the
Company has applied following accounting policy for revenue recognition:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and is net of rebates and discounts. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
and services before transferring them to the customers.

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

The Company has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 *Revenue from contracts with customers® to recognise revenue
in the financial statements. The Company satisfies a perfarmance nbligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company
performs; or

b) The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced: or
¢) The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date,

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which
the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on various cenditions as included in the contracts
with customers.

Point of Time:
Revenue from sale of food, beverages and liquor are recorded net of taxes and discounts as and when the service are rendered.

Over a period of time:
Revenue from service income. parking income is recognized on an accrual basis. in accordance with the terms of the respective
contract on rendering of the services to customers.
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Income from forfeiture of properties from customers is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the
contract.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. IF the Company
performs by transterring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the eamed cansideration that is conditional. Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from maintenance service and other operating income as receipt of consideration is conditional on successful provision
of service. Upon completion of service, the amount recognised as contract asset are reclassified to trade receivables.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company s right to an amount of cansideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (f) Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. 1f a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
{whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs consist of intcrest and other costs
that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company makes contribution to statutory
provident fund in accordance with the Employees® Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act. 1952,

The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable 1o the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. 1 the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to
the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nalure of a defined benefit ptan. The liability recognized in the balance sheet
in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined henefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments
for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefivobligation is calculated at ot near the
balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates of inflation,
salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year end by reference to market yields on
govemment bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Service cost on the Company's
defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability is included
in finance costs. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Compensated absences

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet
date is recognised on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected
to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected 10 be availed more than
one year afler the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
using the projzcted unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit
and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Short-term employee benefits
Expense in respect of short-term benefits is recognized based on the amount paid or payable for the period during which services
are rendered by the employee.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating tc a provision is presented in the statement of profit
and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of moeney is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
s  Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Cempany or
e Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is
disclosed.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profir or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted-average number of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not geaerate cash inflows that are largely independent of those trom other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. [n deteemnining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation mode! is used. These calculations are corrobarated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly waded
companies or other available fair value indicators.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer periods. a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth vear.

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed, and the assel is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly
reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

1) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified. at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OC1). and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCTI, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are *solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting eontractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or hoth.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost - a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met;

s  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows: and
e  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. When the Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case. the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment ef financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL.) model for measurement and recognition of
timpairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between ali contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with

the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. discounted at the original effective interest rate, with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights, When estimating the cash flows. the Company is required to consider -
®  All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

11} Trade receivables
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplificd approach of Ind AS 109, which requirss measurement of
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over 1he expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the
balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date

tii) Qther financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets. the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significanly since initial recognition. [fthe credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures Lhe loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset. To make that assessment. the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at
the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date,

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Initiul recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly
attributable transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings including bank averdrafis and
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using tha effective interest
method.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or [oss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.




Riveria Commercial Developers Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2021

Du-recognition of financial linbilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing hinancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

3) Reclassification of financial instruments

The Campany determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company s operations. Such changes are evident
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that
is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately nextreporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsctting of financial instruments

n)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset. and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offsct the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its financial instruments such as derivative instruments, etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date,
Fair valuie is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair valuc of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the assel in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unohservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant
liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involverment of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 38)

* Investment properties (note 5)

« Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 39)
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Tax

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations, Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recogrized outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retumns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tux
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary diftercnces, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that {uture
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is seutled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in
equity.

Sales and value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/Good and services tax paid. except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority. in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from. or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the balance sheet

Leases
The Company has applied the following policy after 1 April 2019:

The Company assesses al contract inception whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. That Is. if the contract conveys the right
ta control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets
The Lompany recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying assel is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
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recognised. initial diréct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. as follows:

= Building 23.85 years

1f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (1) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencerment date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable and amcunts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a madification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g.. changes 10 future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machmery and equipment (i.c.,
those lcases that have a lease term of | 2 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and |cases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

The Company has applied the following policy befare 1 April 2019:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of lease. The arrangement is. or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A Jease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as finance lease.

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of
the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments under such leases are apportioned between the finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets in which case they are capitalized in
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accordance with Company's general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods
in which they are incurred. A Leased Assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However. if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term. capitalised leased assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating lcases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term,

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Rental in¢ome from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relcvant lease
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned. Fit-out rental income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as 10 reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of Lhe lease.

Cumulative redcemable preference shares
Cumulative redeemable preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terns of the contract.

On issuance of the cumulative redeemable preference shares. the fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent cumulative redeemable instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at
fair value (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the redemption option that is recognised and included in equity since cumulative
redemption option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity. net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the cumulative redemption option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity companents of the cumulative redeemable preference shares
bascd on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance shest comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and shart-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank averdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company ‘s cash management.

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost as per [nd AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements’.
Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. it is assessed for recoverability
and in case of permanent diminution provision for impairment is recorded in statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of
investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Operating segments

An operating segment of a company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses and
for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments are reviewed regularly by chief operating decision
maker to allocate resources and assess their performance. Performance is measured based on profit before tax as included in
internal management reports regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The Company has two reportable
segments i.e. (a) rentals and maintenance of investment property. and (b) restaurant business. The Company is operating in India
which is considered as a single geographical segment.
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2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amendcd standards

i) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid- 19 pandemic. As a practical expedient. a lessee may elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for
any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change
under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification,

The amendments arc applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the | April 2020. In case, a lessee has not
yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment. then the same may be applied for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after the | April 2019, This amendment did not have any material impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS B: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.™ The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
informatjon, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of,
nor is there expected to be any future impact to the Company.

(ii)) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs, which apply
to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if
the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the
hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it does not have any
interest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships to which
the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after the 1 April 2020. This amendment had no impact on the Companys financial statements.

(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability
to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes necded to
create outputs..

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning
of that period. This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods
should the Company enter into any business combinations.

3. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company s financial statements requires management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.

Significant management judgements

Property lease classificarion —Company as lessor - The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfalio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
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substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the coniracts as operating
leases

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Group as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods cavered by an option
to extend the lease if it is reasenably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Recugnition of deferred tax assets -The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets-can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires
assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of Leases - The Company enters into leasing arrangement for various assets. The classification of the leasing
arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessmeni of several factors. including, but not limited to.
transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such
option, proportion of lease tean to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to Fair
value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

{mpairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the
management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Provisions- At each balance shect date basis the management judgement, change in facts and legal aspects. the Company
asscsses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However the actual titure outcome may be
different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate - The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the
lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
‘would have to pay", which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease .The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Net realizable value of inventory - The determination of net realizable value of inventory involves estimates based on prevailing
market conditions, current prices and excepted date of commencement and completion of the projecl. the estimated future selling
price, cost to complete projects and selling cost. The Company also involves specialist to perform valuations of inventories,
wherever required.

Usefil lives of depreciable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence
that may change the utility of assets.

Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40 there is a requirement to
disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company engaged independent valuation specialists to determine the fair
value of its investment property as at reporting date.

The determination of the fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from the
assels (such as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental matters and the overall
repair & condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. These estimates are based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date. Refer Note 3,

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
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Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of undetlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation,
mortality. discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument.

Impairment of non-financial assets - Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of
disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing ofthe asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows arc derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company
is not yet committed to or sigmficant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Taxes - Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax lasses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant menagement judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 7 and Note 36,




